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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of Hope Life International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the revenue of the Group decreased by HK$104.5 million
from HK$293.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
to HK$188.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
overall gross profit decreased by HK$24.8 million from HK$60.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2023 to HK$36.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024. The decrease in revenue
and gross profit was mainly due to the decrease in revenue and
gross profit from consumer goods business.

The Group recorded the loss for the year of HK$30.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024, representing an increase of
approximately HK$29.7 million as compared with the loss for the
year of HK$0.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The increase in loss for the year was mainly due to the increase in
finance costs from interests on other borrowings and provision for
impairment loss under expected credit loss model.

PROSPECT

In 2024, the economic environment in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC, as well as around the world, is recovering and a rebound
of business activities and economic conditions is expected.
We anticipate that the aforesaid expected recovery is likely to
enhance our business performance, and the Group looks forward
to commencing more construction projects and works ancillary
to such projects in Hong Kong and Macau, which will help the
Group to maintain a stable revenue stream in 2025.

The Group will continue to dedicate itself to maximise value for
the Shareholders by adhering to its pragmatic and enterprising
approach in executing its business strategies, and continuously
searching for fresh business opportunities with exploration made
in the consumer goods business and other businesses to broaden
the revenue and profit base of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

APPRECIATION Bt

We would like to thank our committed staff for their contributions, — FFIRE L ¥ Z AL BB TAEHEIEEL » LA
our customers, business partners and shareholders of the NEF - ¥BEBHELRARATREEREFHN T

Company for their continued support to the Group. BT R - BUABIE -

On behalf of the Board REESFZ

LU Zhaowei ey

Chairman ERE

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025 B —E-AF=A=1+—H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

The Board is pleased to present the results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2024 (“FY2024”), together with
the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2023
(“FY2023").

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During FY2024, the revenue of the Group decreased by
HK$104.5 million to HK$188.7 million (FY2023: HK$293.2 million)
and the overall gross profit of the Group decreased by HK$24.8
million to HK$36.0 million (FY2023: HK$60.8 million). The Group
recorded loss for the year of HK$30.6 million (FY2023: HK$0.9
million) mainly due to the increase in finance costs from interests
on other borrowings and provision for impairment loss under
expected credit loss model.

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group has two major segments for continuing operations,
namely construction and ancillary services and consumer goods

business.

A breakdown of the revenue was listed below:
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Year ended Year ended
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
BE-Z_HME BE-T-=F
Continuing operations BEESEE +ZR=+—HLEE +-A=+—HItFE
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
THET TET
Construction and ancillary services B REERD 65,995 35.0 83,246 284
Consumer goods business BEEERER 122,742 65.0 209,905 71.6
Revenue Wiz 188,737 100.0 293,151 100.0
Construction and ancillary services B REERS

Construction and ancillary services which include design, fitting
out, decoration, alteration and addition, construction and other
related business were the focus among our business segments
in FY2024. During FY2024, the revenue from construction and
ancillary services decreased by HK$17.2 million to HK$66.0
million (FY2023: HK$83.2 million). The decrease in revenue
from this segment was mainly due to the decrease in revenue
contributed from the construction and ancillary services of
commercial projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE T wm BT

Consumer goods business

The Company commenced the consumer goods business since
the beginning of 2021. The Group’s consumer goods business
is principally engaged in the production and sales of yellow wine
products in the PRC which comprises yellow wines from medium
to high grade with different flavors and modern-packaging
designs to target young and middle-aged middle class to high
class consumers. The Group’s consumer goods business has
chosen to base in Jiangxi, which is one of the most popular areas
in the PRC in respect of Chinese yellow wine, and operates a wine
production plant in Jiangxi with yellow wine production capacity of
approximately 3,000 tons per annum.

The Group’s yellow wine products are sold mainly under the
brand labels “Minyue Hong” (BI#4T), “Tan Shishan” (24 14) and
“Xingyun Zhi Guang” (3818 Z ). To continuously improve product
quality and launch new products to cater for the demand of the
market, the Group has a research and development department
responsible for quality advancement as well as the development
of new wine products.

The Group’s yellow wine products are sold mainly to wine dealers
and distributors such as food wholesalers, supermarkets and
department stores based in Fujian.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue from the
consumer goods business amounted to approximately HK$122.7
million, representing a decrease by 41.5% compared to the
HK$209.9 million revenue generated during the year ended 31
December 2023.

Discontinued operation - financial services
Money lending business

The money lending business was discontinued in FY2023 due
to disposal of the subsidiary holding a money lenders license in
Hong Kong in FY2023. Before the disposal of the subsidiary, the
Group provided loan facilities to prospective customers including
enterprises and individuals.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses for consumer goods business
decreased by HK$3.9 million from HK$26.9 million in FY2023
to HK$23.0 million in FY2024, which is mainly due to less
advertisements required compared to FY2023.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses decreased by HK$5.9 million from
HK$19.0 million in FY2023 to HK$13.1 million in FY2024. The
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in the remuneration to
directors and employees.

Finance costs

The finance costs increased by HK$9.1 million from HK$6.4
million in FY2023 to HK$15.5 million in FY2024. The increase was
mainly due to the increase of the interest of other borrowings from
HK$6.3 million in FY2023 to HK$15.5 million in FY2024.

Loss for the year

The Group recorded loss for the year of HK$30.6 million in
FY2024 as compared to the loss for the year of HK$0.9 million in
FY2023 mainly due to the increase in finance costs from interests
on other borrowings and provision for impairment loss under
expected credit loss model.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 55 employees (31
December 2023: 64) in Hong Kong and the PRC. The total
remuneration paid by the Group to its employees (including
Directors) for FY2024 was HK$9.1 million (FY2023: HK$12.1
million).

The objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements
and industry practice. In order to determine the level of
remuneration paid to its employees (including Directors and senior
management), the following factors are considered:

° workload, responsibility and job complexity;

° business requirements;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE T wm BT

° individual performance and contribution to results;

° company performance and profitability;

o retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° corporate goals and objectives;

° market rates and changes in relevant markets, including

supply and demand fluctuations and changes in
competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.

In addition to salaries, provident fund scheme, medical insurance
coverage and discretionary bonuses are available to employees.
Level of remuneration is reviewed annually. During the review
process, no individual director is involved in decisions relating to
his/her own remuneration.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of HK$62.2 million (31 December 2023: HK$40.4
million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

The Group continued to maintain a healthy liquidity position.
As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net current assets of
HK$328.1 million (31 December 2023: HK$338.5 million). The
Group had current ratio of approximately 3.8 times as at 31
December 2024 compared to that of approximately 3.9 times at
31 December 2023.

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage
of interest-bearing liabilities divided by total equity. As at 31
December 2024, the gearing ratio was approximately 21.3%
(81 December 2023: 20.3%). The Group’s was working capital
requirements were mainly financed by internal resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R W AT

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi and also incurs cost in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
with respect mainly to Renminbi which may affect the Group’s
performance. The management is aware of the possible exchange
rate exposure due to the continuing fluctuation of Renminbi and
will closely monitor its impact on the performance of the Group to
see if any hedging policy is necessary. The Group currently does
not have any foreign currency hedging policy.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

There was no pledged asset as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: nil).

PLACING OF NEW SHARES

On 19 January 2024, the Company entered into the placing
agreement with CNI Securities Group Limited, pursuant to
which the Company appointed CNI Securities Group Limited as
its placing agent to procure not less than six placees who are
independent third parties to subscribe for up to 259,200,000
placing shares at the placing price of HK$0.105 per placing share
on a best effort basis in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the placing agreement. The Company carried out the placing
offers since it offered a good opportunity to raise further capital
for broaden the shareholders base of the Company thereby
increasing the liquidity of the Shares as well as strengthening the
financial position of the Group.

The placing was completed on 15 March 2024. An aggregate of
259,200,000 placing shares have been successfully placed to not
less than six placees. The net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$26.8 million. The net proceeds were used as
disclosed below.

Details of the placing have been set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 19 January 2024 and 15 March 2024,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE T wm BT

The proposed use of net proceeds from the placing of new
shares, and details of the original allocation of the net proceeds,
and the utilization of the net proceeds up to 31 December 2024
had been applied as below:

FCEF D TS R F R Mg ~ TSR
RN IRE 2 BT A RS RIRFRER =
EMET A=+ -HNHRBEREIIN

T

Intended use
as stated in the

announcements
of the Company Utilised amount
dated for the year Unutilised
19 January ended amount as at
and 31 December 31 December
15 March 2024 2024 2024
e VNG
—EomE
—At+hB ®E-S-HE
R=A+EAZ +ZA=+-H R-Z-mE
DEME t¥EE +ZRA=+-H
Use of proceeds FRBRIERE BERE DHEeH *BALE
Approximately Approximately Approximately
HKS$ (million) HKS$ (million) HK$ (million)
gaEr(as) #Hotn(B8) HHEx(E)
The net proceeds from the share placing are  RVECEFTEHIEFRE BB FINT
intended to be used for
- as to approximately HK$26.8 milion for the  — #926.8 5 & /& LR E
repayment of the Group’s interest-bearing BEAREENFEERR
borrowing and its accrued interest HEFHE 26.8 - 26.8
Total @5t 26.8 - 26.8

As at 31 December 2024, nil of net proceeds raised have been
utilised as intended for the year ended 31 December 2024. There
was unutilised proceeds of HK$26.8 million as at 31 December
2024 and the unutilised proceeds are expected to be utilised in
2025. There is no material change between the intended use of
proceeds and the actual use of proceeds.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had no significant outstanding capital commitment as
at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: nil).

R-ZZBE-_NF+-_A=+—H  BECKXREZE
TZECNFE+ A=+ —HILFENIRTEHA
FrEEIEFsE RN_E-_NE+_-_A=1+—

B REAM

78 £h

(SN

THA20.8FE BT BHE

BRAMBRERR —E_RFHA - AEHKAE

WA RS RERRAR 2 ML EEAR
&) o
KRRR

RZZE-NMF+_A=+—8 AEBETE
—E-=F+-_A=+—8":

ERFIAREE

&)

BERIE

R-ZEBE-_NF+-_A=+—"H AEETES
ARBITEAREE(ZE_=F+=-_A=+—

B ) e

Annual Report 2024 3§



12

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TESRE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in construction and ancillary
services which include design, fitting-out, decoration, alteration
and addition, construction and other related businesses,
and consumer goods business. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and an analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year ended 31 December
2024 are provided in “Chairman’s Statement” on page 4 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 6. Description of
the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group is facing can
be found in “Chairman’s Statement” on page 4. Also, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be
found in note 29(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
The environmental policies and performance are provided in
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on page 37.

The Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Save as disclosed in “Chairman’s Statement”, no important
events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the
financial year ended 31 December 2024. The Group’s future
business development is set out in “Chairman’s Statement” on
page 4.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for FY2024 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on page 77.

The Directors do not recommend any payment of final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FESHE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five years is set out on page 172.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2024,
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
amounted to approximately HK$122.3 million (as at 31 December
2023: HK$128.0 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement’s in the share capital of the Company
during FY2024 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
Fy2024.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Zhaowei (appointed on 19 April 2024)
Mr. XIAO Yi
M. LI Ka Chun Gordon (appointed on 19 April 2024)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHEN Jian
Ms. ZHAO Honggin
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his or her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considered all of the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

In accordance with articles 83(3) & 84(1) of the Articles of
Association, Mr. ZHEN Jian and Ms. ZHAO Honggin shall retire
from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors’ Position Held
On 19 April 2024:

- Mr. LIANG Zhichao resigned as an Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Company, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee;

- Mr. LU Zhaowei has been appointed as an Executive
Director, the Chairman of the Company, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee; and

- Mr. LI Ka Chun Gordon has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company.
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Director’s Emoluments

The Board approved (as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee) the following:

- The remuneration of Mr. LU Zhaowei was fixed at
HK$500,000 per annum with a discretionary bonus,
effective from 19 April 2024.

- The remuneration of Mr. LI Ka Chun Gordon was fixed
at HK$120,000 per annum with a discretionary bonus,
effective from 19 April 2024.

- The remuneration of Mr. XIAO Yi was fixed at HK$240,000
per annum with a discretionary bonus, effective from 21
August 2023.

- The remuneration of Mr. ZHEN Jian was fixed at
HK$120,000 per annum effect from 25 October 2021,

- The remuneration of Ms. ZHAO Honggin was fixed at
HK$120,000 per annum effective from 11 October 2022.

- The remuneration of Ms. CHAN Wai Yan was fixed
HK$120,000 per annum with effective from 17 October
2023.

Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested in any
business which competed or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company
arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” on page 23.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provision
of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as follows:
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had not been notified of
any other persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 13 August 2015
(“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant share options
to any directors, employees, consultants, customers, suppliers
of goods or services to any member of the Group or any entity
in which the Group holds any equity interests (“Invested Entity”)
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group so as to
provide incentives or rewards for their contribution to the success
of the Group’s operation. During the year ended 31 December
2024, no share option was granted by the Company under the
Share Option Scheme.

Summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme is as follows:

(@) Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants to
(i) motivate them to optimise their performance efficiently
for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or
maintain on-going business relationship with the eligible
participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the long-term growth of the Group.

(b) Eligible Participants

Any employees (whether full time or part time), directors
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the
Group or any Invested Entity, any customers, suppliers of
goods and services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity and such other persons or entities (“Eligible
Participants”) who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Maximum number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number
of Shares in issue from time to time. The total number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of listing of the
Shares unless the Company obtains the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting for refreshment.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding)
granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Participant must not exceed 1.0% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i)  a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive director must not exceed 0.1% of the total
number of Shares in issue and not exceed HK$5.0
million in aggregate value.

Period within which the Shares must be taken
up under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board
may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

No minimum period for which the option has to be held
before it can be exercised is specified in the Share Option
Scheme.

Period open for acceptable of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an
Eligible Participant within 21 days from the date of the
offer of grant of the option. A consideration of HK$1.00 is
payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.
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(f)
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(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (i)
the average closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of a Share.

(i) Validity of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 12 August 2025 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASES SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the FY2024.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s five
largest group customers by related groups in aggregate
accounted for approximately 88.4% of the Group’s total turnover.
The largest group customer accounted for approximately 26.6%
of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 99.5%
of the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted for
approximately 46.0% of the Group’s total purchases.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective associates or any Shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers
or customers.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the then controlling Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries,
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2024.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no other significant subsequent event
undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2024 and
up to the date of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, details of the
significant related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are provided under note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on page
25.
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AUDITORS
The consolidated financial statements for FY2024 have been
audited by KTC Partners CPA Limited, who will retire and, being

eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

LU Zhaowei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSHEEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Zhaowei, aged 36, graduated from Auckland University
of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in International Hospitality
Management. Mr. Lu has over 13 years of management
experience in the investment and financial services industry. He is
also a successful young entrepreneur.

Mr. XIAO Yi, aged 35, obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Marine
Resources and Environment from Shanghai Ocean University. He
has over 9 years of experience in hotel management in PRC.

Mr. LI Ka Chun Gordon, aged 35, obtained his bachelor’s
degree in Accounting from The University of Hull. Mr. Li has
around 10 years of experience in the areas of accounting and
financial management in financial institutions and corporations,
and led several large audit and financing projects. Mr. Li is
currently a finance manager of a subsidiary of the Company, an
independent non-executive director of HSC Resources Group
Limited (stock code: 1850) and an independent non-executive
director of Royal Century Resources Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8125).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHEN Jian, aged 54, has over 25 years of experience in
banking and securities investment in PRC and worked as senior
management in several renowned financial institutions. He is
currently the Chairman and Investment Director of an investment
management company in Shanghai. He was graduated from
Correspondence College of the Central Party School of the
Communist Party of China with an undergraduate degree in
Economics and Management.

Ms. ZHAO Hongqin, aged 55, obtained a bachelor degree in
accounting from Anhui University in China. Ms. Zhao has over 25
years of experience in financial reporting and investment analysis.

Ms. CHAN Wai Yan (“Ms. Chan”), aged 29, obtained a
bachelor’s degree in Accounting from University of Hull in
England. She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Chan has over 9 years of financial and
accounting experiences.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFNEAEEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YAU Yan Yuen, aged 37, obtained a degree of Bachelor
of Business Administration in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Yau is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau has 10 years
of experience in financial management, corporate finance and
auditing. Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive
director of Creative China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8368)
and company secretary of Windmill Group Limited (stock code:
1850). Mr. Yau had been the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Wai Hung Group Holdings Limited, a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3321),
since its listing in April 2019 to May 2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and to enhance corporate value
and responsibility. The Board comprises two executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The Board has
adopted the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules. During
the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has complied with the code provisions under
the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that it continues to meet the requirements
under the Code Provisions.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
for Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific
enquiries have been made to all Directors and all Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board
Committee” and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely
Mr. LU Zhaowei, Mr. XIAO Yi and Mr. LI Ka Chun Gordon and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHEN
Jian, Ms. ZHAO Honggin and Ms. Chan Wai Yan.

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed “Profile
of Directors and Senior Management” on page 23 in this annual
report. A list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions is
available on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.
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The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group.
[t also decides on matters such as annual and interim results,
major transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board
has delegated the authority and responsibility for implementing
its business strategies and managing the daily operations of the
Group’s businesses to the executive Directors and members
of senior management. The functions and power that are so
delegated are reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain
appropriate.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make recommendations
to the board; (b) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management of the Group; (c) to review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with
additional meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss
the overall strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial
performance, and to approve interim and annual results and other
significant matters. For regular meetings, Board members are
given at least 14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting
papers are sent to Directors not less than 3 days before the
relevant meeting is held. Directors may propose to the Chairman
or the Company Secretary to include matters in the agenda for
regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at board meetings and abstain from voting on the related
board resolutions as appropriate.
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Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by
any Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comments and records respectively within a
reasonable time after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures
are followed.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board held 7 Board meetings during the year ended 31
December 2024. The attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings is set out in the paragraph headed “Board Committees”
below. During the year under review, the Board reviewed the
disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report to ensure
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect
of indemnification against costs, charges, losses, expenses and
liabilities that may be incurred by the Directors and officers of the
Company in the execution and discharge of their duties.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the Shareholders
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in
pursuit of the development of the Group. They have to participate
in continuous professional development through internal or
external training organised by the Company. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Company organised a training
session relating to the Listing Rules to each of the Directors. All
directors attended the training and complied with the requirement
of the CG Code on continuous professional development during
the year ended 31 December 2024.

Every newly appointed Director will receive an induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of his duties
and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and
requirements.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the
Board and its committees to provide their independent and
objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One of
the independent non-executive Directors namely, Ms. Chan Wai
Yan, has the appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his/her independence
and has satisfied itself of such independence in accordance with
the independent guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and written
terms of reference approved by the Board covering its duties,
powers and functions. Their terms of reference are available on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

(i) Audit committee

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this report,
the Audit Committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. CHAN Wai Yan, Mr. ZHEN
Jian, and Ms. ZHAO Hongqin. Ms. CHAN Wai Yan was the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
and removal of external auditors, review the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting at least at half-year intervals, and oversee the risk
management policies and internal control procedures of the
Group constantly.
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There were 2 meetings of the Audit Committee held during
the year ended 31 December 2024. The attendance of each
member at the Audit Committee meetings is set out on
page 31. During the year under review, the members of the
Audit Committee reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2024, and for the year ended 31 December 2023
and discussed the internal controls together with the
management.

Remuneration committee

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprised two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr.
ZHEN Jian, Ms. ZHAO Honggin and Mr. LU Zhaowei. Mr.
ZHEN Jian is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. LIANG Zhichao resigned as an Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Company, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 19 April 2024. Mr. LU Zhaowei has been appointed as
an Executive Director, the Chairman of the Company, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee on 19 April 2024. The
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on, among other matters, our Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
managements, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management.

There was 2 meeting of the Remuneration Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2024. The attendance
of each member at the Remuneration Committee meeting
is set out on page 31. During the year under review, the
members of the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
existing remuneration policy and package of all existing
Directors and senior management.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 11
and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

(ii)
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Nomination committee

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee comprised two independent non-
executive Directors and one executive Director, namely Mr.
LU Zhaowei, Mr. ZHEN Jian and Ms. CHAN Wai Yan. Mr.
LU Zhaowei is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. LIANG Zhichao resigned as an Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Company, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
on 19 April 2024. Mr. LU Zhaowei has been appointed as
an Executive Director, the Chairman of the Company, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee on 19 April 2024.

The Nomination Committee has the responsibility to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board in accordance with the board
diversity policy. It is also responsible for assessing the
independence of independent non-executive directors and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors.

There was 2 meeting of the Nomination Committee held
during the year ended 31 December 2024. The attendance
of each member at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out below. During the year under review, the members
of the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and reviewed the objectives
set for implementing the board diversity policy.
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The individual attendance records of each Director at
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and
at the general meeting of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

REBE-FT_=—F+_A=1+—HLF

¢

E

REFHFEESRE BERZBEE

FINZBERRERLZBEREREEUR

ZIK

_|

AR A G Z 85! i s 8% 51 40

Number of physical meetings attended/held during the year under review

REBEEAMHE BT RREHEYE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors (Nofe) ERMA) EEg ENZRE FHzRE REZAE (L W]
Mr. LU Zhaowel ERELE 33 N/A T N/A TN NA R 1/1
Mr. XIAQ Yi BREE 7 N/A NER N/A 7B N/A NER 11
Mr. LI Ka Chun Gordon EY iy 33 N/A TR el N/A g 1/1
Mr. LIANG Zhichao 2RARE 3/3 N/A MR il 1 N/A TER
Mr. ZHEN Jian sk m 2/2 202 212 1/1
Ms. ZHAO Honggin BIEat 7 212 2/2 NANER i
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan BREDLL 7 22 N/A 7 2/2 N
Notes: Hiat -
- Mr. LU Zhaowei has been appointed as an Executive Director, — EREEAEN_ZT-_NFENA+NABEERT

the Chairman of the Company, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee on 19
April 2024.

Mr. LIANG Zhichao has resigned as an Executive Director, the
Chairman of the Company, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee on 19
April 2024.

Mr. XIAO Yi has been appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 21 August 2023.

Mr. LI Ka Chun Gordon has been appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 19 April 2024.

Mr. ZHEN Jian has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, chairman of Remuneration Committee, and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 15 October 2021.

Ms. ZHAO Honggin has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, member of Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee of the Company on 11 October 2022.

Ms. CHAN Wai Yan has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, chairman of the Audit Committee and member of
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 17 October 2023.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the date of appointment and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party. Each of the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment letter
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the date of appointment. Each of the Directors will be
subject to retirement and re-election at annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a
person may be appointed as a director either by the Shareholders
in general meeting or by the Board. Any directors appointed by
the Board as additional directors or to fill casual vacancies shall
hold office until the next following general meeting, and are eligible
for re-election by the Shareholders. In addition, all directors are
required to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting of the Company, and are eligible for re-
election by the Shareholders.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance and
adopted a board diversity policy. The board diversity policy sets
out that the Company should endeavour to ensure that its Board
members have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of its business strategy and in order for the Board to be effective.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. YAU Yan Yuen has been appointed as company secretary
of the Company since October 2021. He fulfills the requirement
under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. He is responsible for advisory
the Board on corporate governance matters. During FY2024, he
has taken over 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the Group’s financial position, financial performance and
cash flows for the year and in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The Group has selected
appropriate accounting policies and has applied them consistently
based on prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates.
The Board considers that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future and not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
affect the business of the Group or cast doubts on its ability to
continue as going concern.

The responsibilities of the Company’s external auditors with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Internal controls and risk management

The Board is of the opinion that sound internal control and risk
management systems will contribute the effectiveness and
efficiency of the operations of the Group and to the safeguard of
the Group’s assets as well as Shareholders’ investments.

The Company improves its business and operational activities
by identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular
review and taking appropriate measures to control and migrate
these risks. The management of the Company reviews all
significant control policies and procedures and highlights all
significant matters to the Board and Audit Committee annually.

The Board is responsible for overall ensuring, maintaining and
overseeing the internal control systems of the Group. The Audit
Committee helps the Board to discharge its responsibilities
of ensuring and maintaining sound internal control functions
by reviewing and monitoring the internal control systems and
processes annually so as to ensure that they can provide
reasonable assurance against material errors of the Group. The
Group has an internal audit function.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and considers the risks management
and internal control systems effective and adequate.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

KTC Partners CPA Limited has been appointed as the external
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024.

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to KTC
Partners CPA Limited is set out as below:

SIS R B Bl

EPfﬁﬁﬂM:. SN EBAARARCERER/AR
RABE_FT_MF+_A=1T—HLEFEZ
SNIBRZERED o

RAEE - BN REMN T RIS =S
PrERARLZFHBHESILAT -

FY2024
—2-m|m
MBFE
HK$’000

FHT

=R

Audit services

1,100

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditors during the year ended 31 December 2024.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its Shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual
and interim reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.hopelife.hk) has provided an effective communication
platform to the public and the Shareholders.

REBEZE_2-_NMF+_A=+—RHLFE &
SHEZZ BB ERPGE K ZEINEZE
BfFEEZ -

RAERR

ARAHEE - #FRERERNRREERE
HBSE - ARBBNFTRAEBREAREKE
ERRMBERRE QR ERECR -

RARBBEFERPHBRERERREN &
MEBBERRERMBERIIR - NAFZ ARG
(www.hopelife.hk) & 2 R & IR R IZ B BAI R
mEE e
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION

The Company has adopted Shareholders communication policy
with objective to provide our Shareholders with accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information about the Company so
that they can exercise their rights in an informed manner. The
Company would review the Shareholders communication policy
on a regular basis.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure
its Shareholders are kept well informed of key business
development. These include annual general meeting, annual
report, various notices, announcements and circulars. The annual
general meeting and other general meetings of the Company are
primary forum for communication between the Company and its
Shareholders. The members of the Board, Board committees
and the external auditors are present to answer shareholders’
questions at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
Company shall provide Shareholders with relevant information on
the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable Shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). As a channel to
promote effective communication, the Group maintains a website
where information on the Company’s announcements, financial
information and other information are posted. Shareholders and
investors may write directly to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. However, shareholders are requested to follow
Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, general
meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company are laid down in Article 85 of the
Company’s Articles of Association. No person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the directors for election, be eligible for election as a director at
any general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other
than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed by
the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
provided that the minimum length of the period, during which
such notice(s) are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that
(if the notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for
lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of company secretary, by mail to Flat 1703, 17th Floor,
Wanchai Commercial Centre, Nos. 194-204 Johnston Road,
Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not made any change to its constitutional
documents. A consolidated version of the Company’s
constitutional documents is available on the Company’s website
and the website of the Stock Exchange.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The
primary focus of the Company is to ensure information disclosure
is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby enabling
Shareholders, investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hope Life International Holdings Limited (“Hope Life”, the
“Group” or “We”") recognizes the importance of incorporating
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) factors into its
business operation. We are pleased to present the ESG Report
(the “Report”) for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024 (the “Reporting Period”). It aims to disclose the Group’s
ESG policies, measures and performance for our stakeholders
to understand and evaluate our sustainability efforts. The Report
is prepared in both Chinese and English, and is available on the
websites of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the
“HKEX”) (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group (www.hopelife.hk).

Reporting Boundary

In line with the previous ESG report, this Report covers the core
business operations of the Group, namely the construction and
ancillary services business in Hong Kong. The disclosure of
environmental data is further limited to the Group’s operations of
corporate offices in Hong Kong given the difficulties in collecting
data from areas handled by property owners. We will continue
to review the reporting boundary according to the principle of
materiality and improve our data collection to promote transparent
disclosure, where appropriate.

Reporting Principles

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Main Board Listing Rules
by the HKEX. It has complied with the mandatory disclosure
requirements and “comply or explain” provisions and applied the
following reporting principles stated in the ESG Guide:

FRRAHE
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Materiality Consistency Quantitative Balance
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e The Report presents

e The Report was

e The Group has e Unless otherwise
conducted a specified, the Group
questionnaire survey has adopted

with its internal and
external stakeholders
to identify material
ESG issues, and

thereby, define the meaningful and comparative Group’s business
disclosure focus of comparison. data. operations.
the Report.
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consistent reporting
and calculation
methodologies and
standards to facilitate

quantitative
information, where
available, including
the standards,
methodologies,
assumptions used

prepared in an
objective and
impartial manner that
discloses both
positive and negative
impacts of the
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Opinions and Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback and opinion to help
improve our ESG performance and sustainable development. If
you have any questions or suggestions regarding the Report or
other ESG initiatives, please contact us via info@hopelife.hk.

OUR APPROACH TO ESG

The Group is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its stakeholders and to
enhance corporate value and responsibility. We strive to integrate
ESG factors into our business operations and strategical decisions
to demonstrate our commitment to sustainable development.
Through practical actions, we endeavour to sustain our business
operations in an environmentally friendly, people-oriented and
responsible manner.

ESG Governance

The Board has the overall responsibility for the oversights of our
ESG matters, including reviewing and monitoring ESG strategies,
policies and measures, goals and targets, performances and
reporting, on a regular basis to ensure effective ESG governance.
Under the leadership of the Board, we have established an ESG
Working Group (the “Working Group”) to promote comprehensive
ESG management. Chaired by the company secretary, the
Working Group is responsible for reviewing policies and measures,
identifying key ESG issues, communicating with stakeholders
and responding to their feedback and expectations. With regular
communication, it also assists the Board in evaluating the Group’s
ESG performance and progress against ESG-related goals and
targets.
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The Board
ESY

e Oversee the ESG Working Group
ESEESGIE/A

and targets, and performances

e Approve the ESG Report
HEAEESGHRE

e Review and monitor ESG strategies, policies and measures, goals

B R ESRESGRES « MR N JEjE - BIRNRIER - RIR

Audit Committee

ERE=RE

e  Assist the Board in supervising the Group’s o

risk management and internal control system

M EEGEEAEENREREIERAEE i
e Make recommendations on risk control °

measures

YRS IR LR °

. J
.

ESG Working Group
ESGI /i

Review ESG policies and measures
EHESGH R K iahe

Identify key ESG issues

B ESESGHEE

Communicate with stakeholders

B BB

Respond to stakeholders’ feedbacks and
expectations

Bl 10 & B [ B8 I B 22

\-

Departments and division

EBFI R 53 8B

Assist the ESG Working Group for
implementation of ESG policies and
measures

M BNESGI{E/MAE BESGHBUER M i

The Group will continue to review and advance its ESG
governance, including strategies, policies and target-setting,
thereby further embedding sustainability into its business decision-
making and daily operations.

AEBEBEBEEE M HEERESGRE - BIEK
B - BOR R BIRRRE - (EmE— bF?HT SEH

E&%ﬁkﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ&ﬁ B o
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ESG Framework

As a responsible service provider, we have identified our ESG
responsibilities in striving to foster our ESG performance and

business development.

Environmental
Responsibility

BERE

e Encouraging
environmentally friendly
business operations

BEIRREBEE

e Reducing unnecessary use
of resources

AT BB ERER

e Establishing measures to
diminish climate-related
impacts

@ghmﬂlﬁ@ﬁ%

e Minimizing the negative
impacts of business

=

ESGIEZ

ERBREENRBREE - BB RERFIN
ESGRIEREHER - LIS HHI KR PIMESG
Bff-

Social
Responsibility

e RE

e Enriching stakeholder
communication through
different communication
channels
FRTRIABREE IR E
&R

e Protecting the benefits and
welfare of employees

RIERE MR RAER

e Contributing to building a
harmonious society

RERNEEEEHER

operations
g%ﬁ&%%%ﬁmﬁﬁ%
. J .
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Governance
Responsibility

EARE

o Complying with laws and
regulations

BTREER

e Developing and reviewing
policies and measures as
well as monitoring their
implementation
%J& AR R FE el Ba
RHEEM

e Maintaining a fair and ethical
business and working
environment
HRQF - AT ERHAE
NITERE
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ESG Risk Management ESGR\f% EHE

The Board is responsible for ensuring and maintaining the

ERSEERZESNHE T B ERRIER

effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control A= @R B IR K A SPESIE RGBT - 7
systems, with the assistance of the Audit Committee. During the BREHfE  EESEEMURAERFAERA T

Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed and considered the
systems are effective and adequate. For more details, please refer
to the Corporate Governance Report.

7o BREZFHIE  B2HLCEE WS -

The integration of our ESG framework in our enterprise risk T FIIGESGIEZR M A = F MR 2 RS B 12
management (“ERM”) processes enables us to identify ESG- ([ ¥R Eﬁjﬁir EH M AIESGAE

related risks and establish and monitor appropriate risk control & -

W HIE RERG B RRIZHIER - T

measures. The major ESG-related risk in the Reporting Period is S(%}Z@JJ‘E’;@E%HEFEEJE’]EEESG*HE@J—WA’? :

stated below:

Risk description

R B AR B

Risk control measures

TR B 22 ) 45 58

Extreme weather events The risk of loss of assets and ceasing
business operations and construction
projects due to extreme weather
events, such as severe rainstorms and
typhoons, caused by climate change.

RImRREL RIRBCEHHRE - BRAFEmAR
EMEYEERK  EBEENER
RAF AR -

e Storing the important documents in
secure area away from windows and
keep electronic copies to prevent the
loss of assets; and

¢ Developing contingency plans before
the start of projects and maintain an
active communication with clients.

o BEEXHEFHNEMEFPNZEE
- WREBEFRIAUDIEEEER
xRk

o RIERRKEH] %HEEE%%%UE‘EE@E)E
RIFTER BB
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Compliance Management anER

AEE T BEMERARERNIT /RS
BEE] - SRAAR EMRR - A HERFEL R
BEELTHEE - EERZBESNXFT
EEQEERBEN RS ARKRRMANES
e BERERMAERBNERER - 1A
ERERITA  RAIRIZBEE R 7T
BEWHRBVAE 1 ©

The Group acknowledges that any violations of laws and
regulations may lead to penalties, litigation and other
consequences, which may have an adverse impact on its
business operations and reputation. With the support of the Audit
Committee, the Board supervises the internal control systems to
ensure that we operate in compliance with high ethical standards
and all applicable laws and regulations. In case of any violations,
we will implement detailed investigation and appropriate measures
according to the established procedures.

Aspects
Em

Emissions

BER

Laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group

HESEAEXRENZRER

e Air Pollution Control Ordinance
(Cap. 311)

e Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty)
Ordinance (Cap. 611)

e Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400)

e Waste Disposal Ordinance
(Cap. 354)

o EINEERFTLREHIEH

o FONERESIBZEE(ERIIN)
{1

o F400E R ZFE &

o FE354BREMR E KD

Compliance

an

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

PR RAABERERNIER

Employment and Labor
standards
BB M5 TIRE

e Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)

o FEETEREED

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

TFHEERBBERERNER

Health and safety

fEErzE

e QOccupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Cap. 509)
o FL09EREL T MIERRIKA

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

PFEERBBERERNEBER

Product responsibility

EmEE

e |Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Ordinance

e Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486)

o AR CEIRIERT) IEHI

o F486EAAE R (FLE) 15 H

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations

TFREERBBERERNEBER

Anti-corruption

e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201)

e Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-

Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance (Cap. 615)
o F201E[ I-FEER L

o FoIbEITEXABRERMOD TESSE

S (ERERE) IR0

Not aware of any violations of relevant
laws and regulations nor any
concluded legal cases against the
Group or its employees

P EE AR EREROIT R AL
HEHAEERHE THDEERREN
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STAKEHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The Group believes close stakeholder communication is crucial
to continuously promote its ESG performance and business
development. We have established and maintained open
and effective communication channels with our significant
stakeholders, including employees, shareholders and investors,
customers, suppliers, etc. to foster long-term collaboration.
To understand and respond to their needs and expectations,
the Group has engaged its stakeholders to identify and assess
material ESG issues during the Reporting Period.

Prioritization

BREEF

Identification

L3l

With reference to reporting

0 HiliE

AEEBEEFOENRIDBRENFERTT
HESGRIMEBEREMER - AT RE
2R E(BEREE  BREREKREE TP -
HRER %) B AR 5 R B B R R
B MEERMAE - B TEEOEMANT

KRHE - ARED N REHEANBBEERSD
E2EBH| NHEEAESGHERE

Validation

standards, market trends
and benchmarking, 14
ESG issues were selected,
covering 4 aspects of
“Environmental
Protection”, “Employment
and Labor Practices”,
“Operating Practices” and
“Community Investment”.

REREIZE MHBE
MEAE - BRNE 14
ESGwrE ' EFRE IR
Rl - [EERSTIER
I T8EEN] & [+
RI%E | MEHmE o

\_ J .

The Group has identified 7 material ESG issues during the
Reporting Period, mainly concerning “Employment and Labor
Practices” and “Operating Practices” aspects. Striving to balance
the opinions and interests of different stakeholders, we will
continue to enhance our stakeholder communication and expand
the number of participants.

Different stakeholders Aft(ajar thef.Boa;d’s rﬁview
were invited to conduct an 3.n lcon |rrrr1]a |otr)1  KEY d
online questionnaire and disciosure has been mace
rate the importance of in response to the material
each issue to stakeholders ESG issues.
and the Group’s business. PRETEIN :
Based on the materiality ﬁii;sﬁ”ﬁ E?’; m %gg
assessment, a priority list %ﬁ .
of ESG issues was =
formed.
BEE TR EHEITHE
FEBRAE - W EZE
BERMHERNEBES
ME ST - RIE
EEMFE - HIFTESGHE
EHBIRTIRK »
J \_ J
MRS R - AL BE #5178 35 AESGH

B EBER[ERLS I%%EJ&T%@LWJJ
FH e BRENFETRFNENER KHE
AP A B SR T E BB ITEK/,\/\
e
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RiRE(

HEEWRYLEE
sJepjoyayels o0} asuenodwy]

.

Community
investment

HERERE

Water
IKEIR

Waste
BEY a

.

Anti-corruption
&E Vel
Prevention of child

and forced labor
FriEET &
SRHIST
Occupational

health and safety

Energy
Mﬁ\\\

Employment
Sq:ﬂggeﬁzg system
AT TRESIE
Product
responsibility
Climate change sl

and air pollutants
RERBR
Training and  Z=5R)5 2%
development
'\ IR R
Green
procurement

RERE

\ Greenhouse gas

Very Important Issue
FEEEEE

Very important issues

FRERRE

Importance to the Group’s Business

HERERBHERY

Moderate issues

— RS

e Anti-corruption e Water
RES KER

e QOccupational health and safety e Greenhouse gas and air pollutants
BEERET D BERBRERSRY)

e Prevention of child and forced labor e Training and development
PrIEET Rag|$ T o) B R

e Employment system e Waste
EREHE REZEY)

e Supply chain management e (Climate change
HrEEER RIREb

e Energy e Green procurement
EEYH FERE

e Product responsibility e Community investment
EmEE A
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ETHICAL OPERATION

The Group treats business ethics and quality of service as the
first priority in all business activities to drive its stable and long-
term business development. To promote quality services, we
have implemented our stringent quality assurance, supplier
management and advanced technology application. The Group
has developed the Sustainability Policy, the Code of Conduct
and the Internal Control Policies and Procedures Manual, to
strengthen its compliant operation. Our robust management and
monitoring mechanism also ensure strict compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations.

Anti-corruption

The Group is fully committed to the principle of honesty, integrity
and fair play in all its businesses and activities, striving to maintain
the highest level of business ethics. Any forms of unethical
practices, including but not limited to bribery, fraud, money
laundering and corruption, are strictly prohibited.

We have established a series of internal policies, guidelines and
measures to ensure ethical practices and prevent non-compliance
or legal violations. For example, our tender policy has clearly
specified employees’ obligations, duties and responsibilities in
preventing conflicts of interest. During the procurement process,
employees are required to submit a written declaration to
supervisor and CEO in the events of actual or potential conflict of
interest, which work re-assignment will be arranged to safeguard
corporate integrity. To operate our businesses in an open and fair
manner, we also provide a copy of the tender policy with verbal
explanation to our suppliers and contractors.

To ensure our accountability, the Group has a whistle-blowing
policy in place to encourage reporting any misconducts,
malpractices or irregularities through confidential channels,
including our whistle-blower hotline or in-writing to the Audit
Committee. All received cases and personal information are kept
confidential to protect whistle-blower from any risk of termination.
The Group will immediately carry out serious investigation and
take proper follow-up actions, including reporting to relevant
regulatory authorities when necessary.

The Group provides regular training to employees to enhance
their anti-corruption awareness. Anti-money laundering training
is arranged to new employees and directors within 6 months of
joining the Group to reinforce their understanding on relevant
regulations and internal policies and measures. During the
Reporting Period, we have provided 1 hour of anti-corruption
training to our employees and the Board respectively.
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Supply Chain Management

To ensure our service quality and sustainability performance,
the Group has placed considerable attention to supply chain
management. In the selection process, we have developed a set
of standardized assessment criteria, including industry credentials,
business scale, financial stability and work quality, to determine
supplier’s eligibility in the list of approved partners. Annual review
and evaluation will be conducted to ensure performance of all
suppliers and contractors has met our requirements. Those with
sub-standard performance or incompliance with the established
criteria will be disqualified and removed from our list.

Through close monitoring on environmental and social risks in
the supply chain, the Group regularly review and revise relevant
requirements for risk minimization, facilitating the long-term and
sustainable cooperation with our suppliers and contractors. We
also have incorporated environmental requirements in tender
documents, such as timber with environmental labels, paints and
sealants with low volatile organic compound (“VOC”) content,
etc., which higher preference will be granted to suppliers and
contractors with environmentally responsible performance, in
order to promote sustainable supply chain. We will continue to
review and update the relevant requirements to minimize the
environmental and social risks associated with our supply chain.
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2024 Number of suppliers
—g-mE b llls
By geographical regions Hong Kong 129
IR [R5 5 BE
Other regions 7
Htih @
By nature Services 72
RIEEE D AR%%
Hardware 64
Rt

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to maintain high standard of quality and
reliability for our services to align with customers’ expectation.
With active communication with customers, contractors, suppliers
and other parties, we closely manage and monitor service quality
and compliance of regulations. For instance, clear specifications
for materials are stated in the contracts to ensure fulfilling the
requirements for environmentally friendly operation. For quality
control, managers are responsible for regular inspections during
the construction while the top management and customers will
conduct final check to assure the quality of works. Additionally,
we generally grant 3-month post-delivery service to promote
customer satisfaction.
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To secure good reputation and sustainable business development,
the Group emphasizes the importance of cybersecurity and
data privacy. We have formulated policies and regulations for
confidentiality to minimize the risk of information leakage and
cyber-attack, including but not limited to:

- Employees are prohibited from divulging any confidential
information to third party without prior consent;

- Employees should ensure the safe keeping of all confidential
documents;

- Employees shall access the internet through connections
approved by the outsourced information technology
company and the Executive Director;

- Employees shall not download or install any unauthorized
software;

- Passwords are required for access to computer, network
and server;

Pursuant to laws and regulations, the Group’s administration
department will conduct proper investigation and handling for any
violation.

The Group values and protects the intellectual property rights of
all parties. Our policies and regulations have clearly stipulated that
employees are not allowed to use, download, upload or replicate
any material of the Group or other parties without authorization.
We will undergo investigation in case of copyright infringement,
which summary dismissal, legal and criminal action may be taken.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any
complaint relating to our services, intellectual property rights
or customer and data privacy. When received any complaint,
the Group will communicate with the relevant employees and
customers to promptly and properly handle the case. Corrective
and preventive actions will also be implemented to improve our
quality.
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED

The Group believes employees are the key driving force to our
sustainable development, it is therefore committed to maintaining
a fair, healthy and safe working environment for our employees.
We have the Employee Handbook, the Internal Control Policies
and Procedures Manual and Sustainability Policy in place to
reinforce our human resources management.

Occupational Health and Safety

Occupational health and safety is the top priority of the Group.
We are committed to creating and maintaining a safe and
healthy working environment for our employees. To this end, we
have established stringent measures and internal guidelines to
strengthen our safety management.

To ensure the safety standards and awareness of our employees,
the Group requires all employees to attend safety training
courses provided by verified organizations and confirms their
working eligibility with a valid Construction Industry Safety
Training Certificate (Green Card). Employees are required to use
the personal protective equipment provided to promote safe
operation.

The Group provides comprehensive protection for workplace
and personal safety. Apart from implementing safety rules and
measures at both our projects and offices, we ensure adequate
safety equipment is available for instant response to any
emergency situation or potential incident.

Workplace safety
IEmhR2

FEIE B B5 R ERR iR (SRS
e Scheduling regular fire drill; and °
EHZHNERE &
e Posting evacuation plan at prominent locations.
B ERBRORAL M A BRAR ©
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Personal safety

BAR2

e (Offering first-aid kits on sites and at office; e Arranging annual body check for all employees; and
RITBEELZHFESERSE &

Providing accidental insurance, medical insurance
and travel insurance to all employees.
RFTEREBREEIMRIR - BERR LIRERE -
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The Group regularly reviews and updates our occupational health
and safety-related measures and performance to foster effective
monitoring and management, enhance hazard prevention, and
cultivate a healthy and safe corporate culture.

In the past three years, including the Reporting Period, the
Group had zero work-related injuries or fatalities. In the event of
work-related accidents, we will provide immediate support and
thoroughly investigate the cause to formulate enhancement and
corrective measures for risk minimization and prevention.

Employment System

The Group strives to promote the well-being and development
of our employees. We have established a comprehensive
employment system to ensure all employment practices are
in strict compliance with relevant laws and regulations. For
implementation, our Employee Handbook, Internal Control
Policies and Procedures Manual have stipulated employment-
related guidelines and measures related to recruitment and
compensation, retention and benefits, promotion, working hours,
etc., to facilitate stringent management and monitoring. With that,
the Group sustains a fair and efficient working environment to
safeguard employees’ legitimate rights and interests.
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Recruitment and dismissal
BERRE

* Employees are recruited based on their working ability, working performance and other objective
indicators. Responsible department and personnel will undergo recruitment procedures through legal
channels to avoid |Ilegal employment.

BEREENTIER Y - TIERREREAMBTEERETHRE - BEMFIRAS BB EZRBEERE
By BeIEERER -

» Whenever there are dismissals of employees, the Group will provide corresponding compensation and
review based on their career perspective.

REEBRER  ASESREEBEMNSEHERNHERES -

L J
Retention and compensation
RERMR

* The Group conducts an annual review of employees’ remuneration packages. According to their
working performance, ability, local salary indices and relevant indicators, adjustment to salary, welfare
and benefits will be made when appropriate.

REBEESNFMESETEREREN - RMRBIERR - 82 - EMFIEERERAER - &
RéEe  BARFBIELAE -

» Employees are provided with insurances, statutory holidays and paid and non-paid leaves, as well as
short-term courses or training recommended by their managers or upon request.

EEESRE  EEBRAANEHLEHEANE LR EES R E R HNEHRE -

Diversity, equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

Bt FERE R RIFR

* The Group remains zero tolerance to any violation of regulations in relation to diversity, equal
opportunity and anti-discrimination, and encoura%es the report of violations. .
FEESEUERABZ T TERERRINERTNTAREADEE - THHERERTA -

* Fair employment and recruitment procedures are in place to safeguard the rights of equal opportunity
for candidates and employees in all age group, gender, race, nationality, region, sexual orientations and
other aspects.

i A WE{J%&?EHJEF“ REEFTA EleER - 1R - Bk - B£E - & - ERmEH ENREE RE
B2 TPEREER -

Diversity, equal opportunity and anti-discrimination

SRt - FHFBERRULHR

 The Group discourages and prohibits forcing employees to work overtime in all forms. If there is any
forced labor discovered, thorough investigation will be carried out and violators will be subject to
disciplinary action.
fji%gé%ﬁbiﬁ%@ﬂ%ﬂﬂ%iﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%Iﬂufﬁ c MNBMAARALT - BETREAS  EREBX
BB RED ©

* The use of child labor is strictly forbidden. During the recruitment process, the Human Resources
Department is responsible for checking the identity documents to verify their eligibility to work.

BERAET - £HREBET  ANBRFEEZHIMHEG - MREHTIEERE -
* When illegal workers or child labor is discovered, their application will be rejected and report will be
made to relevant department.

WMBFIDEBTHET - HAFHEIER - WiKABRBEFIHRE
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During the Reporting Period, the Group employed 55 employees, RREHR - AEEEASSZREE - Hh27H
including 27 male and 28 female employees, all of whom are M &28% % - FTEREHAREERFER
full-time employees in Hong Kong and China. The overall turover & B {E 8§ © &K R 525.3% - HFINEEHT

rate was 25.3%. Our employment profile is detailed as follows: NEFBET
Total employees by age group Total employees by gender
RERERNSSHESEE RiERESHESER
55-64 years old: 1 Over 64 years old: 0
55-643% 14 B4BTIA L ¢ 0% Male: 27
B 2745

Under 35 years old: 8
35T « 8%

‘4 years old: 26

45-54 years old: 20
45-547% © 20%

e Female: 28
35-447%, : 26% 2t : 084
Turnover rate by gender Turnover rate by age group
RUEBIBI D IRAE RERERSI S REE
100% 100%
90% 90%
80% 80%
70% 70%
eo% 60% 49.7%
50% 50%
40% 40%
30% 25.7% 24.8% 30% 20.9%
20% I I 20% 12.3% WA
10% 10% . I 0.00% TEA
0% 0%
'gﬁﬁ'ie F%&'e Under 35-44 45-54 55-64 Over 64

35 years old yearsold years old years old years old
36pRPAN  35F44p%  45EBARL  55%64B%  64ELAL
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Training and Development

The Group considers the continual education and development
of employees as imperative to its business development. Guided
by our internal policies and procedures, the Human Resources
Department formulates different training plans according to
employees’ needs, equipping them with adequate knowledge and
skills to perform their duties in a competent and capable manner.
In particular, the Group provides sufficient safety training to our
employees at project sites, including skilled worker training and
Construction Industry Safety Training, to uphold construction
safety.

We support upskilling and personal development of our
employees with short-term courses and training recommended
by managers or upon request. Additional to internal training,
the Group also provides financial support to employees for
taking external training and courses, so as to enhance their
work performance and encourage career progression. For
the long-term development of employees and the Group, we
conduct annual appraisal to review and assess the working ability
and performance of employees. Accordingly, we will provide
promotion opportunity or an adjusted remuneration package to
outstanding employees in demonstrating our appreciation to their
contribution.

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided training for a
total of 8 (563.3%) new employees and the overall average training
hours per employee was 1.2 hour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group strives to minimize the
negative impact of its business operation to the environment. We
have established the Sustainability Policy to develop policies and
measures in order to promote environmental conservation and
minimize potential environmental risks.

Use of Resources

Aiming to accelerate the transition to a circular economy in its
sustainable development, the Group is committed to optimizing
the use and management of natural resources. We foster
effective resources utilization in our business operations through
minimizing resource consumption and maximizing recycling. We
have therefore developed energy and water efficiency targets
and implemented a series of management measures to promote
efficient use of energy, water and other resources, as well as to
lower and avoid wastage. By enhancing environmental awareness
of our employees and providing facility support, the Group has
created a favorable working environment for green practices and
environmental conservation.

Facility Support

B RE
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Employee Awareness

B

e Adopting energy-efficient equipment and lighting
system with Grade 1 energy labels; and

&
e Setting up plantation in offices.
ERAERERER -

RAEA - RERAERHNERERE L RBRES

&R =&

Encouraging employees to switch off the lighting
system and electronic appliances after used or
before leaving the office;

X B TE (R 12 SRR T A = Al B HE PR A R 4t )
Maintaining office air conditioning at 25.5 degrees
Celsius;

BRI AETERRRNE25.5F

Using natural light where appropriate;

B R B AR

Switching off idling engines;

BifE =S| E

Posting energy-saving and water-saving reminders
in office areas;

TEP N RALE B SR BRI

Purchasing stationery and office supplies in bulk;
and

HERBXARM L AM : &

Prioritizing the use of less or zero packaging
materials.

BhEREORTOEOME -
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During the Reporting Period, total energy consumption of the
Group accounted for 36.54 MWh with an intensity of 0.66 MWh/
employee, which have decreased by 1% and 1% respectively

when compared to the previous year.

RIREHR - AEENEKREEEE 536.54
KEE - BEA06KER 1BE & E—4F
EoRIRA1% %1% °

2024 2023 Unit
Energy consumption BEiREFE Mg —E-=F Bfi
Direct energy consumption: BB U8 17.23 17.34  MWh
Petrol JKEL R
Indirect energy consumption:  REZRERERE : BN 19.31 19.55 MWh
Electricity JK LB
Total energy consumption R EREEE 36.54 36.89 MWh
JKEFLES
Energy intensity (by employee) gEIRZE (ABEETE) 0.66 0.58 MWh/employee
KER B8

In terms of water resources, we did not encounter any difficulties
in sourcing water. Our water supply is provided the property
management of the Group’s office, therefore accurate water
consumption data is not available. The Group will continue to
review and improve our data collection and information disclosure
to present a more comprehensive performance overview in the

future.

Carbon and Air Emissions

Despite the Group generates limited emissions from its office-
based operation, it strives to reduce its environmental footprint
in contribution to combating climate change and protecting
the environment. Considering our major emissions sources are
electricity use and fuel consumption from vehicle use, the Group
has devoted effort to decarbonize our business through the
establishment of emission reduction targets, including reducing
scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions intensities.
While various measures have been introduced to enhance our
energy and vehicle management, the Group also maintains
continuous monitoring on the emissions data for evaluation and

improvement.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total GHG emissions  R¥REHIM  AEFAEEREHNAE S
was 18.99 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent and the intensity ~ 18.99W — &L ik & & - ﬁi* 7,‘\—?_!;0 358 — &b hix
was 0.35 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/employee. EE&,/EBE - BT - =4F#  HEPnEsE
Compared to 2023, the total emissions and intensity have EZEEDIE2%K%1% °

reduced by 2% and 1% respectively.

2024 2023 Unit
GHG emissions BERBIEN —E_E —E-=F HEfr
Scope 1 Direct emissions! ENERN=E3719,¢ 4.61 4.69 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent
“aftixEE
Scope 2 Energy indirect #[E 288 R EE e 14.38 14.40 tonnes of carbon
emissions? dioxide equivalent
“SftixE=
Total GHG emissions AEREHINBE 18.99 19.09 tonnes of carbon

dioxide equivalent
—atiEE

GHG intensity (by employee)  JAEREZE 0.35 0.30 tonnes of
(LMEBFTE) carbon dioxide
equivalent/
employee
E-EIREE
B8
The air emissions generated by the Group during the Reporting R SR & HAR - 25 B & 4 /) B R/ HE S R a0
Period were as follows: I
2024 2023 Unit
Air pollutants emissions® 2RISR k- ~Joml 1! |- 3 —F-=F EBf
NO, A&ty 1.36 1.38 kg
T
S0, maty 0.03 0.03 kg
T
RSP AR ASRF LT 0.08 0.09 kg
T
1 Includes direct emissions from combustion of gasoline from vehicles. 1 BB MR £ BRI
2 Includes energy indirect emissions of electricity purchased from power 2 BIENRENARBENSE HHEREEW -
companies.
3 Includes gasoline combustion from vehicles. 3 BIRBEEIRER TR ©
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Wastes

The Group advocates responsible and sustainable waste
management to reduce its environmental impacts. We ensure
proper waste handling and disposal to avoid pollution while
minimizing waste generation to enhance resources utilization.
To reinforce waste management, the Group has developed
corresponding measures based on 3R principles (Reduce, Reuse
and Recycle), to align with our established waste reduction
targets.

Reduce .
products;

BExM

AEERBEEETMAIFENEYER DA)W
DHHERBNTZE  c BMRRESRENE
REEWLAB 53 - [RIR3 EM“?%FEM
REERMNAX - BIRENER  ~NEBR
BRIFSRRAOR A - EEAREU) ) EAEERE
B - DABE A B APIE B E FRES B A ©

Prioritizing the use of less packaging and environmentally friendly

e Advocating the use of reusable tableware and containers;
e Encouraging double-sided printing; and

Promoting the use of electronic documents and communication.

Recycling non-reusable paper, plastic and metals; and

e Recycling compact fluorescent lamps, toners and cartridges.

L s EAGARIBRENRREMR:
o REMFRFEANBEARRR
o HEEMITH : &
o HEEATFXER °
Reuse e Reusing printed paper; and
e Reusing used plastic and metals as containers.
EH o EHFEHRIARK : &
o ERCAYBKREEIERS -
Recycle .
El4x e MO AFIERMER ZBREE : &

o [EIKEREHE - HHLER -

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not generate any
hazardous waste. Meanwhile, it produced a total of 1.38 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste, with an intensity of 0.07 tonnes/
employee, which was general waste from office operation and
was appropriately handled by the property management. It has
resulted in a 3% drop of total non-hazardous waste compared to
the previous year.

RIEHE  AEETEELETNEEEE
W o R EHEA1ICEREREEY  BE
BOOTHE /BT BRPABLELN—RE
EY) o THYESBEISERE -BIE—FF
M EEEEYBE TE3% °

Non-hazardous 2024 2023  Unit
waste generation EBEBREDESE ZENE —E-_=F Ef
Total non-hazardous waste BERZVRE 1.35 1.38  tonnes
48
Non-hazardous waste intensity #EEREEYZE 0.02 0.02  tonnes/employee
(by employee) (LAMEERTE) W, &8
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Climate Change

The Group recognizes the severe impacts of climate change are
increasingly threatening its business operations and development.
[t regards the identification and management of climate-related
risks and opportunities important to enhance its ability to adapt
and mitigate climate change. On the decision-making level, the
Group regularly evaluates and assesses the potential risk and
opportunities to formulate targeted management strategies and
action plans. We have also incorporated climate-related risks
into our ERM processes, which foster the implementation and
monitoring of relevant risk control measures.

In view of the increasing extreme weather, including heavy
rainstorms and super typhoons, the Group has secured important
documents in safe area away from windows and has saved
electronic copies to prevent asset losses. We also will formulate
contingency plan at the initial stage of projects and maintain active
communication with clients when extreme weather is anticipated,
in order to minimize disruption and damage to construction
facilities and operations as well as to avoid project delay.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group takes careful consideration of the environmental
impacts caused by our construction projects to ensure operating
our business in an environmentally responsible manner. Through
systematic control and management, we strive to minimize
construction waste and noise generated during our construction,
in order to limit our impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

Construction waste management

mixEqL

AEEESHIRBRBLHEEYE RS

HEEELNER ASERAHAINEIRNA
ﬁﬂﬂﬁfﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁ R % i T 148 o8 L S JIE % R 4R R
BRECEENIEFEE - WRREBE » AEE
EHFTE M EBERR Rge - UH A
HIERNEIRREE XTI E - BT ERIEE
BRBWARPHCERBEERE - T
FEFE R B 422 11 5 e B B e S BE A% o

ERNERMERBRAS TR RAREBHE - K~
SEEREEXMHENEREPNL RS
WRFEFRIRNAG IEEERK - BTSN
BEMHGIET RSN R - WERFHBREGGRX
REFEEPRIFERER  ARERDEHET
RSB TR RIEEAN B RIA BT

BREXAREER

ﬂiilglﬁ%ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁ‘%’Tfﬁfﬁ%ﬁ}ﬁﬁ’ﬂ
FE - DNEFRNEREAEN T AL SN
RS o BBAGCHOEHI RER - RARNH
M L@iEh EEMERE J?ﬂ&llﬁ%alg =2&K -
A B RER BAEROZE

Hiring licensed and registered suppliers for handling construction waste;

* Requiring contractors to be responsible for managing waste disposal
onsite in accordance with relevant laws and regulations; and
e Failure in compliance will result in termination of business partnership.

BREEHER .

RISFFIE & O A M e p pE IR s SRR KL

o EYABEARERBIABIAAERGEMEENERE X
o HETABRMEBBHRILAFRIE -

Noise management e (Conducting construction activities mainly during daytime to lower noise
disruption to the surrounding neighborhood and environment;

* Arranging operation of low noise level when nighttime construction is
necessary and collecting feedback and suggestions from residents
nearby to facilitate understanding and improvement; and

e When received a complaint, reviewing the construction arrangement
and carrying out communication to reach a consensus.

TERAXRETHRITES - WA EEERMIRENESETE

o FERMBLE ZHERSEER  WRENIERNREER ME
& REEMNECE -

o ERREIRHRIR  BEMRIZHIWETER

 LABERK A o
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COMMUNITY CARING

In devotion to its social responsibility, the Group has been
actively seeking opportunities to give back to the society, as
outlined in the Sustainability Policy. We concern the needs and
development of communities where we operate and help those in
need through community services and charity donations. Our key
focus areas include elderly, orphans, chronic patients, disabled,
unprivileged families and victim from natural disasters. The Group
also encourages our employees to participate in our community
initiatives in contribution to building a harmonious society.

In the future, we will continue to refine the relevant policy and
explore ways to create positive impact to the society.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S
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PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW RUEE
Environmental RiE
Environmental Key 2024 2023  Unit
Performance Indicators® REREENER —EomE —T-o=F B
Air Pollutant emissions® ERGRYHH
NO, RE 1.36 1.38 kg
=
S0, maty 0.03 0.03 kg
T=
RSP AR FHLT 0.08 009 kg
T=
GHG emissions BEREHN
Scope 1 Direct emissions' FENEZHEW 4.61 4.69  tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent
W —EtiEE
Scope 2 Energy indirect ENEPEN L3 e 14.38 14.40  tonnes of carbon dioxide
emissions? equivalent
WMoEltiEE
Total GHG emissions RERBHEE 18.99 19.09  tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent
WBoEtiEE
GHG intensity (by employee) BERERE 0.35 0.30  tonnes of carbon dioxide
(LMEERTE) equivalent/employee
—alREs/EE
Non-hazardous waste EZTEEY
Total non-hazardous waste BERZEYES 1.35 1.38  tonnes
WA
Non-hazardous waste intensity BEREVNEE 0.02 0.02  tonnes/employee
(by employee) (MESFE) W,/ &8
Energy consumption BEIRBFE
Direct energy consumption: Petrol BEERBERE - Ul 17.23 17.34  MWh
JKELES
Indirect energy consumption: Electricity [EIZELRIERE « A 19.31 19.55  MWh
JKELEF
Total energy consumption BEREREEE 36.54 36.89 MWh
JKELBF
Energy intensity (by employes) BREE(AEEFE) 0.66 0.568  MwWh/employee
KEE/EE
4 The calculation of air emissions and GHG emissions were with reference to  # ERIM MR E R ME N E R E BN

HKEx’s “How to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on

Environmental KPIs”.

BIEERIES]] -

AREIRT - B REAREME =  RBRRAK
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Social ite
Social Key Performance Indicators it ERARENEE
Total employees 2024 2023
ERE® ko1 -3 —ET-=F
By gender Male 27 31
ZMRIED Ef i
Female 28 33
g
Be age group Under 35 years old 8 10
REWRED 35FAT
35-44 years old 26 28
35-445%
45-54 years old 24 25
45-545%,
55-64 years old 1 1
55-645%,
Over 64 years old 0 0
645% A L
By employment type Full time 55 64
RERERNE S )
Part time 0 0
FREL
By geographical region Hong Kong 7 12
R IR R 5 BB
China (PRC) 48 52
G
By employment level General staff 40 49
RIEREBRE S EWET
Supervisor 7 7
FE
Middle management 1 1
HEEEAB
Senior management 7 7
BRERAE
Total
Ty 55 64

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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Employee turnover rate 2024 2023
ERRKE —ETmE St s =
By gender Male 25.7% 27.4%
RUERIE D St
Female 24.8% 25.6%
peqid
By age group Under 35 years old 49.7% 56.3%
RFRE D 35T
35-44 years old 12.3% 14.6%
35-44%%
45-54 years old 15.3% 19.5%
45-545%
55-64 years old 0.00% 0.00%
55-647%
Over 64 years old N/A  Not applicable
B4BRIA L Ri#EHR TNER
By employment type Full time 25.3% 26.3%
ZEEENE S B
Part time N/A  Not applicable
O AEHR TiEA
By geographical region Hong Kong 14.3% 25.0%
LR RIS E 5 BB
China (PRC) 36.3% 27.6%
G
By employment level General staff 36.3% 25.0%
RIERBARE S TwmET
Supervisor 0.0% 0.0%
Ea=
Middle management 0.0% 0.0%
FEEEAE
Senior management 14.3% 27.6%
SREEAE
Total
st 25.3% 26.3%
Health and safety 2024 2023
REERZ —EmE —Eo=F
Work-related injuries (employees) ITEAB(RE) 0 0
Lost days due to work-related injuries TEEXTIERY 0 0
Work-related fatalities (employees) IrH(EE) 0 0
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Percentage Average
of employees training hours
Employee training® trained per employee
ZAMET BHURTH
B I HEe B  FIEHIRFS
(hours)
(%) (/N )
By gender Male 50.0% 1.2
ZMRIED B
Female 50.0% 1.2
2z
By employment level General staff 50.0%
ZEEERE S EWmET
Supervisor N/A 0.00
*E NiE A
Middle management N/A 0.50
HEERAR TiEHA
Senior management 100.0% 0.58
SREEAE
Total
st 53.3% 1.2
Supply chain 2024 2023
fLiEsE k- o 11 .- 3 —E-=F
By geographical region Hong Kong 129 127
IR [R5 5 BB
Other regions 7 3
HAtbib[=
By supplier nature Services 72 67
BHEREEE S PR 75
Hardware 64 63
W
Total
st 136 130
5 Employee training statistics include existing employees of the Group and 5 B TG eEAEEAR S T MR ARk B

those who have resigned during the Reporting Period.
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HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

BXRESGHESIMBRS]

Aspects Description Page/Remark

{1} it ke HR ik

A1 Emissions

A1HER

General Disclosure Information on: 42, 52-54
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

—MRHER BHERIORERBBHN - MK LHHEDS - BF
MEEEEMNEEFN
@ BE: K
(o) ﬁ#iﬁéﬁ}\ﬁ BERFEEREREEBRHIEE

Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 54,58
e iR A AR R BB -

Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 54, 58
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.
B (BE1) RegRAEZE(BE)REREHERARETE -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 55
FEXEEREENMHEERTE °

Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 55, 58
FESEREREENEERTE -

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps takento ~ 52-54
achieve them.
HAPAET MR E B 1R R RER5E L B R PR
HBE

A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 55
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
R ERIE R E NEEEEMN L - LEMPTEI I
R B AR R RED|E L B R ERER A PR o

A2 Use of Resources

A2EREH

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including 52
energy, water and other raw materials.

—MRBEEE ERERAER(BIEGR - KEREAMEME) BB

A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in 53, 58
total and intensity.
REREIDHERERSHEEEREEERTE

A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 53

RIEKENBE -
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} fiii i HR i
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and 52

steps taken to achieve them.

P RT LBV REIRE A e B IR R ARE RS L B 1RPR

FREREY A BE -
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing 52-53

water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)

set and steps taken to achieve them.

FEIUSKEGE AR R A E B - ARPIET A

K B AR R AEDE L B R PRSI 28R -
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and  The topic is immaterial to

per unit produced.

HRmARBEMHNEERBEEBMHKE -

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ASERIE R X ARE

General Disclosure

—RRIR R
A3.1

A4 Climate Change
AdFEE{L

General Disclosure

—RIKE

A4

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

BR BT ABIRIERAAERENERZERBUR -
Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

R EREBEIRE R RN EIRNERNTZE R E
ERBHEZENITE -

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer.

IS IREINE ﬁ%é%ﬁéﬁ)\éi?ﬁﬂﬂ@iﬁﬁ
IR B EHIBUR

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

R E G R AT e H BT AEETENERRIZIEH
BH REHTE -

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S

the Group as its businesses
do not involve any use of
packaging materials for
finished products.
R E BT R A ER
BRI BEME - hEE
HAEEMFWLAERK ©

52, 56

56

52, 56
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} fiii i HR i
B1 Employment
B1{E (&
General Disclosure Information on: 42, 47-49
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
— MR ER EAGNRRE - MEREA - TERE - R T
Ee - Zlh - RIBRUAREMAFSREN
@ BE: K
(b) ﬁ?‘%ﬁéﬁAﬁ BAFENERER AN E
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age 50, 59
group and geographical region.
MR - EFEER - FRAER RMEEI D MES B -
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 50, 60
geographical region.
MR FheAR R EBI S HEERAE o
B2 Health and Safety
B2@RERZ
General Disclosure Information on: 42, 47-48
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
— MR ER FEAREZ 2 TIERERREREES#HEBENLREZN
@ BE: K
(b) ;ﬁ?‘%ﬁé‘ﬁ}\ﬁ BAFENERERZ AN E
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred 48, 60
in each of the past three years including the reporting
year.
BEZF(AEREFRE)BFRENRITHNAR
Kb o
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 48, 60
EITEEAXTIERE -
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 48

adopted, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

L PTER AN B R R B 2 Fa e - AT
BERTE
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} fiii i HR i
B3 Development and Training
B35 & B 14l
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills 47, 51
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
—ARBER BERTEERITIERE N AE R RIBER - 1
AMIFFNEE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 51, 61
employee category.
RIERIRESEEIDNZIEEB DL -
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 51, 61
gender and employee category.
RUERIREEERNES - BEEETHZ I TR
o
B4 Labor Standards
B4% T #8
General Disclosure Information on: 42, 47-49
(@  the policies; and
(o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labor.
—RRAREE BN IEE T R85 TH)
(a BER: &
) BTFTHETAGEAZENHEBERLRIINE
* o
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 48-49
practices to avoid child and forced labor.
e BB fIe e AR £ B T og k|45 T
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices 48-49
when discovered.
R AE IR B R IE R ER B BB ST EREE 28 -
B5 Supply Chain Management
B5ERER
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 46
the supply chain.
— MR ER EIRHEENIRE Rt RREBR
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 46, 61
i@ E o H R R -
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 46

number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

A FEREREEEES - mERNITAERIEMMH
JERIERE - ARMBRAFNITREESIA o
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
Em §ili st HR fwsE
B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 46
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
LA AR M R T IR 8RR A g A B
Bl - A RAERAEIT REEE A o
B5.4 Description of practices used to promote 46
environmentally preferable products and services when
selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
R RRE HEE R (R Z B RRE M RREAIE
Bl - ARAERAEIT REES VA o
B6 Product Responsibility
B6ERFIE
General Disclosure Information on: 42, 46-47

—RRIREE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.

BHEPRMHERNRBOREEEZS - BE - REK

TLEEEARMEROTED

@ BX%:k

(o) BETHETABEAZEOEBEZRAMNNE
e

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EEXDEXERBET R 2 REFE R MA@
WBEDH °

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BN Em MRS HIZER BB LA R B 770% o
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

fe it B AR B RN B E B RA VB
Description of quality assurance process and recall
prooedures

i E B0 E BIR REMEIKIEF

Description of consumer data protection and privacy

policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.

i E B & ERRERALBBER - A RARBERT R E
BRITE °

The Group’s businesses do
not involve any advertising
and labelling.

AEEEBE LIS REAE
ERIBH -

The topic is immaterial to the
Group as it is not relevant to
its businesses.

A It 58 B EL ZE 7S AR
B IR HAEE S I
TERX -

47

47

46

47
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Aspects Description Page/Remark
=i} il st HR i
B7 Anti-corruption
B7TRE5
General Disclosure Information on: 42,45
(@  the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
—ARHER RN ILARRE « 3R - BGFRERER ¢
@ B X
(b) ﬁ?%?&ﬁ)\*ﬁiﬁ T ENREERRROINE
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 42
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.
RIREBRAHEITAREEERE T EEENETH
IR BE AR FAR
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 45
procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
P E A e R B WE - A RAEBERITRER % -
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 45
directors and staff.
HitmESE R E TIRHHRETE
B8 Community Investment
B8 EHRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 57
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
— AR HEER BN E2ERTREEMEMLRTEEMBRELE
BEBEZE Rt R =R o
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 57
ﬁ/EEE Eﬁ$ﬁm °
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 57

EEIHRERBAER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

KTC Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

P M E S EHERERAE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPE LIFE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hope
Life International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 77 to 171, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

o0 % B B2 B A PR 2 R 1 G B 3R
(RASRSEMKILZERRF)

BR

EEEERERHENET7TEEFITIANER
BERZERERAR(TERAR ) MEKB LA
(R ERE ) ZEAUBHRE - BER=
ZoMEFT A=+ HBNHEEMBRRE
BEZALFENSABaMEtEE RS
R EABDEPHREIGARSERER UK
FEVBHRERNT  BREAGHBRERR
HAibEiHER

BEERR  AEHREMBRRCOREET LS
N\
AN

SRR ([ BB HBREEL DEEMP SR
M7 SEER-_Z-_ME+A=+—HHNE
AUBERAREEZA I FENGEMERER

REARERE  WEBBRESR R ZH
BRATZRREH -
BRMEE

BEECREEASHMASRHNEEERX
R (TBEEZENDETERZ - BFEZX
FEANTHAENE TS EANREZBEIE
AR AWM BRRAEZEE | ST EE—F
Mt - RIEF LS ASEMACERSF
hEET R (AT FA]) - BEEBY
K BEKE - YEETTRTHEMERER
B - B50E  BEEMESNERERRER
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B A2 BEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

HREXER

REHEEREBEESNERAML - RAHAFE
RBRNELRAEENTH - GLFHER
BEEREAMBHRAMNABTEZ B REET
REEFITEHELIHEHERFNER

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters

REERER
Revenue recognition

Refer to the accounting policies in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

We identified recognition of revenue from the construction
and ancillary services as a key audit matter due to
significant judgments involved in the management’s
assessment process.

The revenue of construction and ancillary services
amounting to approximately HK$65,995,000 were
recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2024.

Revenue from construction and ancillary services, which
are fixed price contract work, is recognised progressively
over time using the input method in accordance with
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. It
is based on Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation relative to the total
expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance
obligation. The revenue and profit recognised in a year
on these projects is dependent, amongst others, on
the assessment of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
projects (i.e. contract cost incurred for work performed)
relative to the total expected inputs to the projects (i.e.
estimated total budgeted contract cost committed for
the projects).

B2 A MR M EEME 2 SRTHK -

FEMERREE RS < W et HRER B S EESR T
%15 RAREREZHE@RT S RERHE -

BE_T-_NF A=+ HLEFEZHEGER
MEME2EANSERAEFTERNEERE ZREL
65,995,000/ 7T ©

ERMEERB (REEEBSOTE) 2 WEHRESR
BUBwELERNESRES A A Mz £ BIRATEMEE
B RIAR B W R o I YRR BB R ) T
BHEERENE OB ERRTER AR A KR
m ° Jtt%lﬁiﬁ E—FARER A WS Foa MEBURR (B a
EDE .75"115E\ﬁﬁf’ﬁﬁ’\]‘%ﬁEJZTQ)\E’]EHH(EEEET:I
If’E?ﬁﬁ‘ SH)E KIAR) EENIR B /0@ TR A (BT
AEE AR BHREESORE) -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENERNMEEREEXER
o§=10

Our procedures in relation to the recognition of revenue
of construction and ancillary services and contract assets
and contract liabilities included:

° obtained an understanding of the Group’s controls
and processes over the revenue recognition,
include projects approval, invoicing and journal
entry approval;

° assessed the Group’s revenue recognition
practice to determine that they are in compliance
with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, including the assessment of the
Group’s efforts or inputs to the projects (i.e.
contract cost incurred for work performed) relative
to the total expected inputs to the projects (i.e.
estimated total budgeted contract cost committed
for the projects);

o agreed projects contract sum to signed contracts
and variation orders on sample basis;

EEEAERESERREERBUEARENEEREY
BENEFEE:

o T ESRBEAWERR ENEH MBIE - B8R
AAE - BER A DR R

o HMA ERER Y ERIED HEa ﬁé
MRS EREISRE, S 744?@ : &?Eﬁ § 3
B218 B A EA0SS A sk AR TR (BN E /87T TIF
PRERISENE KA ) IR I8 B ARTERIIR A (BN &
BB AENGHERESHKAK)

. %m* RREE NS REDRITNANMEERE
AR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

MREZER

Variations in contract work are recognised as contract
revenue to the extent that the modification has been
approved by the parties to the contracts and it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.

The uncertainty and subjectivity involved in determining
the cost to complete and foreseeable losses may have a
significant impact on the revenue and profit of the Group.

MEMFTHTCHIEER] MR TRESHERSEH
Yeas - MERRB R KD BOEABEIBA LG
Koo

?z%*ﬁZﬁﬁZ$ﬂTi‘§ﬁJ§ﬂ§Fﬁ}ﬁ&MTﬁﬁﬁ
el EREMNREMENELRERE

AEEE

MREZER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFHERNMERMRBEXER

o obtained contracts from management and
reviewed for any specific or special performance
obligations and conditions during the financial
period;

° vouched the actual cost incurred during the year to
details of supplier invoices and subcontractors on
sample basis to check the validity and accuracy of
the costs;

° performed cut-off testing to verify contract costs
were taken up in the appropriate financial year;

° performed retrospective review by comparing the
total actual contract costs incurred at completion
against the total budgeted contract costs to assess
the reasonableness of the estimates used by the
management;

o for projects in progress, we further recomputed
the percentage of the progress of the contract
based on input method to test the accuracy of
the percentage of the progress to determine the
revenue; and

° compared total contract revenue to actual cost
incurred plus estimated cost to complete, and
assessed for foreseeable losses.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

MRFEZER

Provision for impairment loss under expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model of trade receivables
and contract assets

Refer to Notes 18, 19 and 29(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had gross trade
receivables and contract assets of approximately
HK$118,232,000 and HK$22,250,000 respectively, and
allowance for ECL of approximately HK$15,058,000 and
HK$508,000 had been recognised, respectively.

ECL for trade receivables and contract assets are based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL to be
incurred, which is estimated by taking into account
the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue trade
receivables and contract assets, debtors’ repayment
history and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions, all of which involve
a significant degree of management judgment.

E2 R A M RAMEE18 - 19K29() °

RIZE-NE+=-A=+—HH BSE£EENEFHENR
HBENAGHNEERTED R4 /118,232,000 7T &
22,250,000 ¢ * WE D I ERBEEEBERELD
15,058,0007% 7T 2 508,000 7T

BIRRFENRANEENTRREEERDEREEE
HELNEHRBEREERNMGER - ZA R K
FEBRLR BARESRIARENEENRE
1R A B0 22 SRR 52 A N 3 8 A I FEDRI A0 B RS A RS
&t A RIRKIZE R E TR E FIE -

MREZER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFHERNMERMRBEXER

RABENRARANRERMERGER(TRARERES
i DRER TR ER IR

Our procedures in relation to management’s ECL
assessment on trade receivables and contract assets
included:

° Reviewing and assessing the application of the
Group’s policy for calculating the ECL;

o Evaluating the techniques and methodology
adopted by the management in the ECL model
against the requirements of HKFRS 9;

° Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
loss allowance estimates by examining the
information used by management to form such
judgements, including the reasonableness of the
estimated loss rates applied on each debtor in
the ECL assessment with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information
and assessing whether there was an indication
of management bias when recognising loss
allowances;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters

MREZER

We have identified ECL assessment of trade receivables
and contract assets as a key audit matter because
assessing ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets is a subjective area which requires the exercise
of significant judgment by management and uses of
estimates.

EEREHRUFALANEENTAREEE BRI GH
MRERETFE SHRTHEZIRRFERENE
ENBEHEEREA—EXTHEE  FREEEERSE
RHer b e AR -

MREZER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFHERNMERMRBEXER

Inquiring management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables and contract assets past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence, such
as understanding on-going business relationship
with the customers and debtors based on trade
and transaction records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers and debtors;
and

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables and contract assets as at 31
December 2024 to the underlying financial records
and post year-end settlement to bank receipts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon
(“Other information”).

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPOR
S A% BUED ¥

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the group financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and review of the audit work performed for purposes of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 BEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

KTC Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Kwok Chi Kwong
Audit Engagement Director
Practicing Certificate Number: PO1911

Hong Kong, 31 March 2025

BB E G SMERRRIEZ
REGR)

HEEAEBSBNFRT  BFEEWLFH
HAHGEAVBRENBZRASER - AME
KRR EZEIR - ESERBENRE Pz
FEH - RIPRBIER T A RHABEEZS
B EBRFRZBERT - MRAIEEAD

BERETRBREIEN 2 B HERBB
EEZ ARG  BEFRAETRERSTER
ZEE

PRNEEHAESERARAT
PRI (HEF)

B
ERHAEE
HEFERT - PO1911

BEE —E-_AF=A=+—H

Annual Report 2024 3§



78

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Are B A E A 2 I R 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

2024 2023
—ESmE —T=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BaE T#T FiET
Continuing operations BEESES
Revenue e 5 188,737 293,151
Cost of sales SHER A (152,702) (232,328)
Gross profit EF| 36,035 60,823
Other income and gains H AU A Ko F) 6 239 27
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERY (22,984) (26,854)
Impairment losses under expected credit  FEHEAE EEBER T 2
loss model, net of reversal BEEE - MkRED 9 (13,056) (1,887)
Administrative expenses TR (13,061) (19,021)
Finance costs BB RN 7 (15,513) (6,398)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRI (BER), SR F 9 (28,340) 6,690
Income tax expenses s 10 (2,297) (5,490)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REBFFEREEBZER
continuing operations (E518) 2% (30,637) 1,200
Discontinued operation ERILETEE
Loss for the year from discontinued REBKRIEEEEBL 2
operation FREE 8 - (2,121)
Loss for the year FRER (30,637) (921)
Other comprehensive loss for FHHMEER
the year, net of income tax: MRS -
Items that may be reclassified AJRER B BRI
subsequently to profit or loss: }E wmC HA -
Exchange differences on translation of HMEINBIZETE 2
foreign operations fEH =58 (1,107) (1,163)
Exchange differences on inter-company A& F5E—2m 25N
loans to subsidiaries that form part of net B &AM B A F{EH
investment in foreign operations SERNRRIEERE
HERR (6,958) (1,821)
Other comprehensive loss for FHEM2EER
the year (8,065) (2,984)
Total comprehensive loss for FRZEGREHE
the year (38,702) (3,905)
Loss for the year attributable to EAFEEABILER
owners of the Company -]
— from continuing operations —REFECEER (32,652) (3,514)
— from discontinued operation —REE RIS ET = (2,121)
Loss for the year attributable EAFEEABLER
to owners of the Company B8 (32,652) (5,635)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Are B A E D 2 W R 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2024 2023
t-Jond 1 3 —E-=%F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
PiEE THET FET
Profit for the year attributable to IR EREGER
non-controlling interests aF
— from continuing operations —REFEEEER 2,015 4,714
Profit for the year attributable to IR ERENER
non-controlling interests oz ]l 2,015 4,714
(30,637) (921)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(ER) waed
attributable to: FE{LIRER -
Owners of the Company KAREB A (40,384) (8,495)
Non-controlling interests IR 2 1,682 4,590
(38,702) (3,905)
Total comprehensive loss attributable ZATFHEAEGRE
to owners of the Company: BigaE
— from continuing operations —REFERCEER (40,384) (6,374)
— from discontinued operation —REBRIEEEER - (2,121)
(40,384) (8,495)
Loss per share: BB -
From continuing and discontinued REFBERDRIEEE
operations 7%
Basic and diluted (HK cents) BN R 5 () 14 (2.17) (0.50)
From continuing operations REAEFELEER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) AR R 5 (B(L) 14 (2.17) (0.31)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR e BRI R

As at 31 December 2024
RZZE_mMF+—_A=+—H

2024 2023
—TmE —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
MIE FExT FHET
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - B MR 15 23,133 24,153
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 618 842
23,751 24,995
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 17 89,315 98,846
Trade receivables H 5 WA 18 103,174 111,230
Contract assets BREE 19 21,742 44,887
Deposits, prepayments and other e EAFREREAM
receivables FEMRIE 20 168,697 160,510
Cash and bank balances B MIBTHE 21 62,153 40,434
445,081 455,907
Current liabilities RBAaE
Trade payables B S e EIE 22 2,488 26,648
Other borrowings HAb AR 24 75,016 73,651
Contract liabilities BHEE 19 2,846 135
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 329 885
Income tax payable FERTPTISHR 662 1
Accrued expenses and other payables FERTRAS R EAMbEMFRIE 23 35,595 16,111
116,936 117,431
Net current assets mENEERE 328,145 338,476
Total assets less current liabilities wEERREAR 351,896 363,471
Non-current liabilities ERBIARE
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 292 -
292 -
Net assets HERE 351,604 363,471
Capital and reserves BERER
Share capital f&As 26 31,104 25,920
Reserves 1 309,768 328,501
Equity attributable to owners of PAYNEIE PEWN TR £y
the Company 340,872 354,421
Non-controlling interests IR A 30 10,732 9,050
Total equity BiEs 351,604 363,471

The consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 171 were F77E17T1BZHEEVBREN S _AF =
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson 31 A=+—RAEEZ S ERFETIZIW R T

March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: EEREREE
LU Zhaowei XIAO Yi
EARE Hig

Director Director

EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 81
A ER B

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ENGE PN
Statutory Non-
Share Share  Exchange Other surplus  Retained Sub-  controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings total interests Total
EERR

k& BRER ERGE  RBRE B FEERN it FHIBHEE #it
HK$000  HK000  HKS000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKBOOD  HK$000
TEL TiEL TEL TEL T TEL T TEL Tin

(Note 26) (Note (i) (Note (i)
(W29 g ()
Asat 1 January 2023 RZE_=f
-A-H 8,640 282,364 (11,842) 401 1,958 12,835 243,956 4460 248416
[Loss)fproft forthe year ~ ER(F5E) /7 - - - - - (5,635) (5,635 4714 1)
Other comprehensive EREMEA

income for the year, Wiaa - 1

net of income tax; FrET
Exchange diffrenceson BB K 7[E

translation of foreign HEE

operations - - (1,039) - - - (1,039 (124) (1,163
Bxchange diferenceson AR EFE-3

inter-company loans to B LINEEHBA

subsidiaries thet formpart BB RIELE

of net investment inforeign ~ ERAZHER

operations LEREE - - (1,821) - - - (1,821) - (1,821)
Total comprehensive FR2E(BE)/

lossoroitiortheyer IS - - e . S BEY BAS 450 RO
lssue of shares (note 26) {1k (41226) 17280 103,680 - - - - 120960 - 12090
Share issue costs OB - (2,000) - - - - (2,000) - (2,000)
Aopropriation to statutory  BAZERBEE

surplus reserve - - - - 15672 (1572 - - -
Asat 31 December 2023 and H=F-=%

1 January 2024 TZA=1+-H

R=E-mE
-A-H 25,920 334,044 (14,702 401 3,130 5,628 354,421 9,050 363,471
[Lossyprofitfortheyear ~ ER(EE) /47| - - - - - (32652 (32652 2015 (30637)
Other comprehensive EREMEE
income for the year, s ks
net of income tax; SR -
Exchange differenceson ~~ BESEEK7[E

translation of foreign REB

operations - - (174 - - - (174) (333) (1,107)
Exchange differenceson A EFE—H

inter-company loans to DINEEBR

subsidaries that formpart~ MBARIELE

of netinvestment inforeign ~ BIRVAFRER

operations LERER - - (6,958) - - - (6,998) - (6,998)
Total comprehensive ERRE(BE)/

(loss)/proft for the year gk - - (7,732) - - (3265 (40384 1682 (38702
lssue of shares (note 26)  EfTiR{3(H/28) 5,184 22,032 - - - - 21,216 - 21,216
Share issue costs ORI - (381) - - - - (381) - (381)
Appropriation o statutory  EAETEBHE

SUrplus reserve - - - - 710 (10) - - -

Asat31 December 2024 RZZ-ME
+-R=+-H 31,104 355,695 (22,434) 401 3,840 (27,734) 340,872 10,732 351,604
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

nﬂ‘

j[ ")’\%a,.\éjjil%

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

Notes:

@

(ii)

Other reserve

Other reserve represented (i) the difference between the Group’s share of
nominal values of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the
Group’s cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under common control upon
the completion of the Group’s corporate re-organisation in the preparation
of the Company’s listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited; and (i) the changes in the Group’s ownership interests in its
subsidiaries that do not result in the loss of control.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Articles of Association of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) require the appropriation of
10% of their profit after income tax determined under the PRC accounting
standards each year to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance
reaches 50% of the registered share capital. According to the provision of
the PRC subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, under normal circumstances,
the statutory surplus reserve shall only be used for making up losses,
capitalisation into share capital and expansion of the Company’s production
and operation. For the capitalisation of statutory surplus reserve into share
capital, the remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less than 25% of
the registered share capital.

Hist

@

(ii)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\\/T\/\Eﬁi}ﬁfg%ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

2024 2023
t-Jo 113 —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FiBT
Cash flows from operating activities EEFHEEZHERE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiRI(E18E), R T
From continuing operations REFELEER (28,340) 6,690
From discontinued operation KB BRI TS - (2,121)
Adjustments for: BLATIEEEHAZ -
Provision for allowance for expected FHETEHEERERE
credit losses, net of reversal p[E 3 E 13,056 1,887
Provision for impairment loss on M TR BIR R E RS 1A
prepayment to suppliers e - 1,807
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR - (24)
Bank interest income HRITALEWA (16) (©)]
Depreciation of property, plant and W -« BEMEETE
equipment 3,267 3,174
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 593 1,333
Finance cost BB 15,513 6,410
Gain on early termination of lease IRATARIFRE 2 e (13) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and ﬁ’iwﬁ B K & 2 B 1E
equipment 120 -
Operating cash flows before BEFCETHIZ
movements in working capital BERaRE 4,180 19,1563
Decrease in inventories FERD 9,532 45,929
Increase in trade receivables H 5 e W HIRE N (7,363) (83,108)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and e - FENFRIEREAERGRIE
other receivables )i (12,271) (87,306)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEERD,/(3N) 23,645 (37,219
Decrease in trade payables B S ENFIBER L (24,160) (10,205)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilites & & &1& 0, Crd) 2,711 (464)
Increase in accrued expenses and other  FEFTFI 2 K E b B~ FRIEIE N
payables 3,990 5,135
Cash generated/(used in) from operations & ELE (FTA) 2R & 264 (148,085)
Income tax paid AN (1,636) (6,229)
Net cash used in operating activities EZ;EZEFMAZRLBHE (1,372) (154,314)
Cash flows from investing activities RETDEENHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWMZE - BB L& MHE
equipment (3,146) -
Bank interest received EHERTTHE 16 3
Net cash outflow from disposal of HE—FfBAREEMNR 2R
a subsidiary bk = 67)
Net cash used in investing activities RE;EFEHMANRLRH (3,130) (64)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CeRemEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

2024 2023
ot o 113 —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T T
Cash flows from financing activities MEITHELENHRESERE
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRMDFTS5RIE 27,216 120,960
Share issuance costs related to issue of ?é‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ AN EE T TR
shares (381) (2,000)
Capital element of lease liabilities paid ENHEEaGEZEARNTE (620) (1,370)
Interest element of lease liabilities paid ENHEaEZFETE (20) (68)
Increase in other borrowings HAbfEFIE M 1,365 31,915
Interest paid on other borrowings Hip B BEAFE = (4,772)
Net cash generated from financing MEFFTBELENRSBHE
activities 27,560 144,665
Net increase/(decrease) in cash Re&RR&EEMEM, (RD)
and cash equivalents BE 23,058 9,713)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FMZHRERBLEEY
beginning of the year 40,434 52,490
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ JMNEE R Z Bz & (1,339) (2,343)
Total cash and cash equivalents atthe FRZRERF &S Ehias - B
end of the year, represented by 62,153 40,434
Cash and cash equivalents BReRA&SEY 62,153 40,434

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre B ERR MR

nﬂi

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hope Life International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Cayman Islands on 19 January 2015
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The Company’s
registered office is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at No. 1012 on 10th Floor, Harbour Crystal Centre,
No. 100, Granville Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred hereafter
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in construction
and ancillary services, which include design, fitting-out,
decoration, alteration and addition, construction and other
related businesses, and consumer goods business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. All values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise stated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)

for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the

Group’s annual period beginning on 1 January 2024 for the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

Supplier Finance Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7 and
HKFRS 7

—REH
EREERIERER AR ([ART ) RE
HERERATAERE(—NAN—FF
=5 BEEERE)RZE—RF—
A+ NhBaERERSEMKRL AER
FHMBR AR - ARalzEMiltEEMA
7 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands * £ = B & 2 3 2 {7 7
BB NEIEREZE10058 &P 01082
10125% o

KRB REZERNA o RNATF REMH
BRR(ATHRBIAEE])ETBEER
RREERG(ERERT - K& K
#f ~ EREARN - BREEMAEES)
ANMHBEEEmMET

RAMBRRET(TABIT] TAAR
AZWEEER) 25 - RAATIAEI -
PIEBEENEEREIZ T -

ERHIEEMEREEN(E
RMEREENDRERMEHE
BRI ZERT
REFEERGENOMETERMBE
SEARFEMBREENZERT
RAFE  BRREEWBERE - &%
EEAERE_T_M&E—A—BRAK
ZFE BRI E R G 5D
RE([BBGFMAE ) MERNTE
BUBREENRBBYHRELEN L
&7

BB GRS LR ERARMPNEE
E16 2 (55] aE
ERGIENFEIR  AEIEARYR
pa Hi FERBRIEEES
RREBESHZER]
(Z2=%F)
EREPENE1S  WEZENIERD
ZIERT =L
EREPERIETRY HERRETH
BB REER
ETRZIERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)
The Group has applied the amendments for the first
time in the current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to
defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current
or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as
current or non-current should be based on
rights that are in existence at the end of the
reporting period. Specifically, the classification
should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability
within 12 months.

° clarify that the settlement of a liability can
be a transfer of cash, goods or services, or
the entity's own equity instruments to the
counterparty. If a liability has terms that could,
at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the transfer of the entity's own
equity instruments, these terms do not affect its
classification as current or non-current only if
the entity recognises the option separately as an
equity instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e B9 MY ot

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

21

Impacts on application of Amendments to

HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and related amendments to

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve
months from reporting date which are conditional
on the compliance with covenants, the 2022
Amendments specifically clarify that only covenants
that an entity is required to comply with on or before
the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date, even if compliance
with the covenant is assessed only after the reporting
date. The 2022 Amendments also specify that
covenants with which an entity must comply after
the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not
affect the classification of a liability as current or non-
current at the reporting date. However, if the entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to
the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period, an entity discloses
information that enables users of financial statements
to understand the risk of the liabilities becoming
repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period. This would include information about the
covenants, the carrying amount of related liabilities
and facts and circumstances, if any, that indicate that
the entity may have difficulties complying with the
covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the
Group has applied the new accounting policy to the
classification of liability as current or non-current
retrospectively. The application of the amendments
in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B9k MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

2.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to HKFRS

Accounting Standards Accounting Standards —
Volume 112

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.
a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

sre B ERR MR

nﬂi

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective (Continued)

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on presentation
and disclosures in financial statements, will replace HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements. This new HKFRS
Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements
to present specified categories and defined subtotals in
the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes
to the financial statements and improve aggregation and
disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the financial
statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have
been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments
to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings
per Share are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027, with early application permitted. The application of
the new standard is expected to affect the presentation
of the statement of profit or loss and disclosures in the
future financial statements. The Group is in the process of
assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S

(a)

Basis of preparation of consolidated

financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO").

The directors of the Company have, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements, a
reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ ﬁle% i& % MT D_II_

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Going concern (b) BHEEE

REMBRRENEEREXS
EHRUREE ()

Although the Group recorded net current assets of
approximately HK$328,145,000 as at 31 December
2024, which included cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$62,153,000, the Group recorded
loss of approximately HK$30,637,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2024, defaulted in payment
on other borrowings with principal amount of
HK$67,500,000 alongside with accrued interest of
HK$20,434,000, and received a statutory demand
from a lender in September 2024 demanding for
repayment of the principal amount of HK$37,500,000
alongside with accrued interest and default interest
of approximately HK$13,355,000 (as at the date of
statutory demand).

Notwithstanding the aforesaid condition, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern
for the foreseeable future based on the following
assessment and remedial actions taken by the
directors of the Company

(i) the directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group’s cash flow forecast prepared by the
management, which covered a period of not
less than twelve months from 31 December
2024. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligation as and
when they fall due and carry on its business
without a significant curtailment of operation of
not less than twelve months from 31 December
2024;

(i)  the Group shall implement cost-saving
measures to maintain adequate cash flows for
the Group’s operations.

Based on the foregoing, the directors of the Company
believe that the Group has adequate resources to
continue operation for the foreseeable future of not
less than twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. The directors of the Company therefore are
of the opinion that it is appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting
policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners
of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to contracts with customers is provided in
Notes 5 and 19.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments represented fixed lease payments
(including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The lease liabilities is presented as a separate line on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
and deferred income tax expense.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
each reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
each of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

REMBRERENEEREXS

EHBREE (&)

(c) EXEHBREHE (&)
RIA(#)
EAEHE ()

EETIR B EZA R B A B Kok
BRAIZRENAELRESE
EZERBERZRTARR - &
IR B A B R B
T 1Lt T By 22 B A A TR R A A% 2R A BE
TERE - EBZERE N ERA
Z R R E R E L 2 RER
HEEEN A S RAERBE
AIAERERER ak A BFR
A] T8 R 6 5 2 AT LA 8 [0 B A

ELERAEE L REMEESREH
RETRE - XNTHRIEE RS
JERTL s A 7] A AN [ P A sk B8
B EREHAREIOR -

EEHBREERBBATHREHIR
EHITREL LD AITOHHE (A
BOE) RER  REHBEZAR
SERZEEE N ERR T

=
E-°

ELERAEREREENTERRA
SEES RS MR KO HEE
HEERAGEREERNT TSR
HIELAER

R EAEENETRACAEES

FEFIA - AEREETEEVIRINR
ERBNMEREEEXHEAR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\\/T\

MG HRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. The
Group recognises a deferred tax asset related to lease
liabilities to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised and a deferred
tax liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax
or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes. Property,
plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (‘CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the
consolidated statement of financial position include: (a)
cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash
and cash equivalents as defined above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets
are allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be established,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
a CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwiill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but as
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ 7”%% i& % Fﬁ uf

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sole and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\\/T\

MG HRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

(c)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from
the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, contract assets, deposits,
other receivables and cash and bank balances). The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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MG HRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting period with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

U

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over 1 year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries
are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and
contract assets are considered on individual
basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

l\\/T\

3.

(c)

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which
case interest income is calculated based on
amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, contract assets,
deposits and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined
in that foreign currency and translated at the
spot rate at the end of each reporting period.
Specifically, for financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not part of a designated
hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, accrued
expenses and other payables and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a
foreign currency and are measured at amortised
cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined based on
the amortised cost of the instrument. These foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a
designated hedging relationship.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a
foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the
reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liabilities derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial
liability to which the amortised cost measurement
applies as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to account
for these changes by updating the effective interest
rate, such change in effective interest rate normally
has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the
relevant financial asset or financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if and only if, both these conditions are met:

° the change is necessary as a direct consequence
of interest rate benchmark reform; and

° the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis (i.e. the basis immediately
preceding the change).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

3.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(c)

Material accounting policy information

(Continued)

Employee benefits

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57)

For the Group’s subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong,
pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57,
the Group has the obligation to pay LSP to qualifying
employees in Hong Kong under certain circumstances
(e.g. dismissal by employers or upon retirement),
subject to a minimum of 5 years employment period,
based on the following formula:

Last monthly wages (before termination of
employment) X 2/3 X Years of service.

Last monthly wages are capped at HK$22,500 while
the amount of long service payment shall not exceed
HK$390,000. This obligation is accounted for as a
post-employment defined benefit plan.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise
the Group’s mandatory MPF contributions, plus/
minus any positive/negative returns thereof, for the
purpose of offsetting LSP payable to an employee (the
“Offsetting Arrangement”).
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BAS

IS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (Continued)

(c)

Material accounting policy information
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)
Obligation to pay LSP under Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57) (Continued)

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June
2022, which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits
derived from employers’ mandatory MPF contributions
to offset the LSP. The Abolition will officially take effect
on the Transition Date (i.e., 1 May 2025). Separately,
the Government of the HKSAR is also expected to
introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers for
a period of 25 years after the Transition Date on the
LSP payable by employers up to a certain amount per
employee per year.

Under the Amendment Ordinance, the Group’s
mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any
positive/negative returns, after the Transition Date
can continue to be applied to offset the pre-Transition
Date LSP obligation but are not eligible to offset the
post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore,
the LSP obligation before the Transition Date will
be grandfathered and calculated based on the Last
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition
Date and the years of service up to that date. The
Group does not consider the Amendment Ordinance
to have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)
The Group engages in provision of design, fitting-out and
decoration services. The Group concluded that the Group
acts as the principal for such transactions as it controls
the specified good before it is transferred to the customer
after taking into consideration indicators such as the Group
is primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide
the construction assets. The Group has latitude on service
specification and price-setting of the services rendered.
When the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the
Group recognises service revenue in the gross amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled as
specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
recognised revenue relating to provision of design, fitting-
out and decoration services amounted to HK$65,995,000
(2023: HK$83,246,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

(a) Revenue recognition of contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit
of a contract for the provision of (i) design, fitting-
out and decoration services; and (ii) design and
decoration services by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction at the end of the
reporting period. Progress towards complete
satisfaction is measured based on input method.
Estimated revenue is determined with reference to
the terms of the relevant contracts. Contract costs
which mainly comprise sub-contracting charges
and costs of materials and labour are estimated by
the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major subcontractors
or suppliers involved and the experience of the
management. Notwithstanding that management
reviews and revises the estimates of both contract
revenue and costs for the contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in
terms of its total revenue and costs may be higher
or lower than the estimates and this will affect the
revenue and profit recognised.

Management reviews the contracts for foreseeable
losses whenever there is an indication that the
estimated contract revenue is lower than the estimated
total contract costs. The actual outcomes in terms
of total contract costs or contract revenue may be
higher or lower than estimated at the end of each of
the reporting period, which would affect the revenue
and profit recognised in future years as an adjustment
to the amounts recorded to date.

The carrying amounts of contract assets and contract
liabilities arising from contracts are disclosed in Note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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4.

5.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. BEXEHFIERRGETFHBER
AND KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION BEZRR ()
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty A FEABE R EERIR (1)
(Continued)
(b) Provision of ECL for trade receivables, deposits (b) BHEWKHIE BRERHMEIR
and other receivables, and contract assets BHREVEECTHEEHIRIBHK
The loss allowances for financial assets are based TRIEEMEBBENENENR
on assumption about risk of default and expected B RIEHBBEENRE - AEER
loss rates. The Group use judgment in making 1?&2%%1?’*“&% RETERERNE
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the A SR B A H B #'J%ETJ%ENE
impairment calculation, based on the debtor’s past BARE AR - B AT AR
due status, existing market conditions as well as B EEARRBIE 5T -
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in EHEEEEREYETEELA
estimates. The information about the ECL and B BEEEHREEBERNIER
the Group’s trade receivables, deposits and other B ZEWHIE - ime RE AWK
receivables, and contract assets are disclosed in HREAEHNEENER D BN T
Notes 18, 20 and 19 respectively. 18~ 20K 19# & -
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KSR EEE
Revenue Bz
(a) Analysis of revenue (a) WP
Continuing operations FHEAS ST
2024 2023
—E-mE —Eo=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue from contracts with BB T ZERE 155
customers within the scope of HEAZEF AW
HKFRS 15
Recognised on over time basis: Bf%{HﬁEJE’JTE%ﬁEL :
Design, fitting-out and decoration  &&&T + A& R EEHARISIA
service income 65,995 83,246
65,995 83,246
Recognised on point in time basis: 7 3 #5524 FERR
Sales of wine products HERBEER 122,742 209,905
Total revenue recognised during FERHEZUIDEEH
the year 188,737 293,151
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

5.

(b)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Revenue from provision of design, fitting-out and
decoration service income

Revenue from the provision of design, fitting-out and
decoration service income are recognised on an
over time basis, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
services, because the Group’s performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced. The input
method adopted by the Group recognises revenue
based on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction
of the services. The input method provides a faithful
depiction of the Group’s performance where reliable
information is available to the Group to apply the
method.

A certain percentage is retained by customers until the
end of the retention period as the Group’s entitiement
to the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality, including repairing for any
leakage, damages, works ratifying that unsatisfied by
architects and the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.

For revenue from provision of design, fitting-out and
decoration service that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and
incentive payment, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled using either
(@) the expected value method or (b) the most likely
amount, depending on which method better predicts
the amount of consideration to which the Group will
be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transactions price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Revenue (Continued)

5.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

(b)

(c)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue from sales of wine products

Revenue from sales of wine products is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the customer’s
specific location (i.e. upon delivery). Following the
delivery, the customer has full discretion over the
manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has
the primary responsibility when on selling the goods
and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss in
relation to the goods.

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for
faulty products are under the standard warranty
terms. Accumulated experience is used to estimate
such returns at the time of sale. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. No refund liability for goods
return was recognised. The validity of this assumption
and estimate is reassessed at each reporting date.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its contracts for
production and sales of wine products, provision for
design and/or decoration service and design, fitting-
out and declaration service such that the above
information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations under
the aforesaid contracts that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM”), review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. Information reported to the chief
operating decision marker, for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment, focuses on the
types of goods or services delivered or provided.

For the segment reporting purpose to the CODM, the Group
is currently organised into the followings two operating and
reportable segments:

(@  Construction and ancillary services — design, fitting-
out, decoration, alteration and addition, construction
and other related businesses.

(b)  Consumer goods business — production and sales of
wine products.

An operating segment regarding the financial business
was discontinued during FY2023 and was presented as
discontinued operation.

The segment information reported on the next pages does
not include any amounts for this discontinued operation,
which are described in more detail in note 8.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KRB EE(E)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(F)
Segment revenue and results SEBU R R R R
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business Total
BER HEE
RERS EREY #gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHT FHET
Year ended gE—T-ME
31 December 2024 +=B=+—
LLEE
Continuing operations BIEEREE
Segment revenue D 65,995 122,742 188,737
Segment results DEPEE (4,912) (3,702) (8,614)
Unallocated corporate income ROBEERA 216
Unallocated corporate expenses KA B X (19,942)
Loss before taxation BRERIEE (28,340)
Income tax expenses FriS TR (2,297)
Loss for the year FAEIE (30,637)
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business Total
BER HEE
R ERRS EmER fmEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAL FEL FHL
Year ended BE_ZT"Z=
31 December 2023 +=ZRA=+—H
LEE
Continuing operations FEGEEL
Segment revenue Ak G 83,246 209,905 293,151
Segment results DEEE 878) 22,409 21,531
Unallocated corporate income AOTBERA 26
Unallocated corporate expenses ~ FHBLEERY (14,867)
Profit before taxation BRAE AR F 6,690
Income tax expenses FTS RS (5,490)
Profit for the year FERGEH 1,200
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KRB EE(E)
(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(HE)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SHERRERE)
Unallocated corporate income mainly included certain HEZZ-_MFLE-_FT=_=F1+2H
unallocated bank interest income for the years ended 31 =T —HBULEFENRDELERAEE
December 2024 and 2023. BIEET RO EBITFEUA °
Unallocated corporate expenses mainly include certain RO ERZITEREET —RNEA
general office expenses, finance cost on other borrowings ERX - AMERNPTBEREUARES
and employee benefit expenses. B -
Segment results represent the profit earned by or loss from DEEBEBRRELRDPEASHRAS -
each segment without allocation of income tax expenses, AOBEEERARKDEREEFZA
unallocated corporate income and unallocated corporate B0 BR AT BRER A | B SRS BB o 1
expense. This is the measure reported to the CODM for BRTELERREERUAMELERS
the purposes of resource allocation and performance B R RIRFEH TR ©
assessment.
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue EXFHEz BB ERRREIAR
generated from external customers. There were no inter- Pz g o RmEFE AL E S 32
segment sales in both years. HISHE o
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAR
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business Total
BER HEE
RERH% EREE #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FET
As at 31 December 2024 R-Z_ME+ZA
=+-H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 52,255 416,507 468,762
Unallocated assets ROBEE 70
Consolidated total assets mEBELE 468,832
Liabilities fifR
Segment liabilities DEEE 3,576 7,025 10,601
Unallocated liabilities AN =N 106,627
Consolidated total liabilities maaEen 117,228

Annual Report 2024 3§

121



122

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ 7”%% i& i‘% Fﬁ uf

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5 BK@RSIWMBEHEGE)

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(F)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) STHEERARGE)
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business Total
e HEE
FRERRS EmEH F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHL FAT FHAT
As at 31 December 2023 R-Z2-=%+Z-H
=+-H
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 70,281 410,557 480,838
Unallocated assets RAOBREE 64
Consolidated total assets HeBERE 480,902
Liabilities R
Segment liabilities DEEE 20,665 10,565 31,230
Unallocated liabilities ROBEE 86,201
Consolidated total liabilities maAffes 117,431
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and E,t%.’f%?%a‘ﬁi’%fﬁ URESF 2HAPEE
allocating resources between segments: RS :
e all assets are allocated to operating segments other o Fﬁﬁ BEASBETEESH - XK
than unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising @Eu—.%éﬁ?ﬁ?%(l% 5T &

certain unallocated property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, cash and bank balances, and

other receivables); and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly
comprising certain unallocated accrued expenses and
other payables, lease liabilities and other borrowings).

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

5 B@RSBEHEGE)

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(E)
Other segment information Hth > 5BE
Construction ~ Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business  Unallocated Total
BRR HEE
RERH EREE E 3 @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FTi#ER Fi#n FTER TR
Year ended BE-_Z-_ME+=A
31 December 2024 =t+—HLEE
Capital expenditure (note (a)) BAHY (Wita) - 3,820 = 3,820
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BELRETE
plant and equipment - 3,267 - 3,267
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREENE - 593 - 593
Interest on lease liabilities HEREHNE = 21 = 21
Interest on other borrowings HifEFHE = = 15,492 15,492
Allowance for expected credit losses, J“E,ﬁﬂf SEBBRETE
net 1,456 11,600 - 13,056
Construction Consumer
and ancillary goods
services business  Unallocated Total
B HEE
TERS ERES RO et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL FHT THL
Year ended gE_S-=%+-8
31 December 2023 =t+—HILEE
Continuing operations BEBEEE
Depreciation of property, nE - BERFERTE
plant and equipment - 3,157 - 3,157
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 186 918 - 1,104
Interest on lease liabilities MEBENS 9 59 - 68
Interest on other borrowings HibfEHF 8 - - 6,330 6,330
Allowance for expected credit losses, fﬁi,ﬁﬁ@f’ﬂéﬂﬁ%ﬁ FE
net 805 2,889 - 3,694
Note: Yoz
(a) Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and (@) EARSZBIEME  WEREEA NS AR

equipment and right-of-use assets.

BEZRE -
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5.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, Macau
and People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Group’s geographical segments are classified according
to the location of provision of services and delivery of goods.
There are three customer-based geographical segments.
Segment revenue from continuing operations from external
customers by the location of customers during the years are
as follows:

Yo B 5 EBER # (48)

SWEE(R)

wERH

AEELEWRUNEL  BRFIRPE
ARKMB(THE]) -

AEBRBRHERSE MR E Mz
BN HENE - A=ANTF HERD
HWIBHE - REARKRBINBEFOFE
REFxHeoaRas(REFPUESD)
W

Revenue from external customers KEIEFE B K 7
Continuing operations FRBISEETS

2024 2023
—EME —EC=F
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
TH#IT FiBT
Hong Kong B 65,995 72,296
The PRC F 122,742 177,505
Macau SRPY - 43,350
188,737 293,151

The Group’s geographical segments are also classified by
the location of assets, information about its non-current

AEBTREBEEEREMNEZ D HIIED
B AEESERBEENRBER (R

assets by geographical location are detailed below: BAEED)FBOT
Non-current assets HnBEE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong ' 618 1,136
The PRC & 23,133 23,859
23,751 24,995
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KERSBEEGE)

(Continued)
Segment information (Continued) DEEE(HE)
Information about major customers FREIEERMEH
Revenue from continuing operations from customers of RBEFEEARREERKZER10%ME
the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total PREAFECEES W
revenue of the Group is as follows:
2024 2023
ot~ Jod 1 -3 —E_=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Customer A2 EFEA2 50,116 66,353
Customer B! =ZFEB! 44,500 -
Customer C? EPC? 26,602 76,924
Customer D? BFD? 24,896 34,689
Customer E! ZFE 20,800 34,033
Customer F2 R 20,756 -
Customer G' EFG - 43,350
Customer H' BEH - 31,939
1 Revenue from provision of design, fitting out and decoration service. 1 REFREER - BEREHRGE 2 UG -
2 Revenue from sales of wine products. 2 REHEBIEE M2 W= o
6. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. HtugARKE
Continuing operations BFEEEER
2024 2023
ZZEME TEC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Bank interest income HRITALEWA 16 3
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—EE QR - 24
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEDE - BEMKEREEE
equipment (120) -
Sundry income LI PN 330 -
Gain on early termination of lease BRI EAE WS 13 -
239 27
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HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

7. FINANCE COSTS MERE
Continuing operations BHEEEER
2024 2023
—E_ME —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TF#T FHET
Interest on other borrowings HAERFLE
- Accrued interest —EETFIB 6,605 6,330
— Default interest —BHFE 8,887 =
15,492 6,330
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEZFE 21 68
15,513 6,398
8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS CRIEEBEER

On 30 November 2023, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of a subsidiary, Greater Bay Finance
Limited, which carried out all of the Group’s money lending
business operation. The disposal was effected in order to
generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s other
businesses. The disposal was completed on 30 November
2023, on which date control of Greater Bay Finance Limited
passed to the acquirer.

The loss for the year from the discontinued money lending
business is set out below.

RZZEZ_=F+—A=+H x&E]
HE W - AHEMB A RKEM B
ERAR - ZARETASEMBENRE
X% - HENEERBRASEMNHM
EBRERER - HEERE_=F
+—A=+HZEK  RBXREZFBEER
NRMEGIECDER TUET -

KADRIEREREXBNFAEBESR
SIS o

Period ended
30 November
2023
HE-_T-=F
+—A=+A
1EHARE
HK$'000
FAT

Loss of money lending business for the period/year — Hi,/FARIE XS E 8 (2,121)
Gain on disposal of money lending HEREEB RS

business

24

(2,097)
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8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 8.
The results of the money lending business for the period
from 1 January 2023 to 30 November 2023, which had
been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2023, were as follows:

CRILESXE(E)

-2 _=ZF—HA—HAZ2-_2-_=F
+—A=+BHEEfFABE=ZE ==
F+_ A=+ HULFENGEEERZMN
HEm2ERmEROMEEFEENT ¢

Period ended
30 November

2023
BHE_ZT-_=fF
+—HA=+AR
1EEAfA
HK$’000
F#T
Revenue Wz

Loan interest income =SSR PN -
Other income HABYA -
Administrative expenses THAX (2,109)
Finance costs BERA (12)
Loss before taxation BRELATEE (2,121)
Income tax expense FrfssiA -

Loss from discontinued operation for the period/year ZNATIEH AEIEE, FRFKED
attributable to owners of the Company IR EBHEE 2,121)

As referred to above, the Group discontinued its money
lending business operation at the time of disposal of its
subsidiary, Greater Bay Finance Limited. The net assets of
Greater Bay Finance Limited at the date of disposal were as

EFrat  AEERHEEMBARK
EEEAER AR RIEEREER -
REEBR  KREFBERARANFE
=3I

follows:
Analysis of assets and liabilities BERARAIR
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - BB R 12
Cash and cash equivalents ReKAEEEY 167
Deposits and other receivables, net e REAERGRIRFEE 96
Other payables and accruals H b B R ERT & (199)
Net assets disposed of FTHENFEE 76
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation: & DRI B -
Cash consideration receivable YRS RE 100
Net assets disposed of &R FEE (76)
Gain on disposal HE W= 24
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ENBARMES ML 58
Consideration received BRE 100
Less: cash and bank balance disposal of W T EMIR S MIRIT (167)
(67)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 8. EBRILEEXRHE)

Analysis of the cash flow of discontinued operation is as ERIMHEEEBNRSREDTAT
follows:

Period ended

30 November

2023

BHE_T_=F

+—A=+H

LE B

HK$'000

FAET
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBFTRAMIR S S5 (9,175)

Net cash generated from/(used in) BEERBEL (FTH)MIRSF5E

financing activities 8,839

Net cash used in discontinued operation BRI E TR R IR 2558 (336)
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9.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. KRAI(ESE) &F
Continuing operations BRI E R
2024 2023
—E_pE TEC=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FiBT
(Loss)/profit before taxation from continuing 2 B #3548 48 & %15 2 R TR Bl
operations has been arrived at after (B18),amF kg,
charging/(crediting): (BT ) TS IR IERL -
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) ESxMeMaz11) 1,063 3,664
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  TEREMEN(T
(excluding directors’ emoluments) BIEEEME) (W)
(Note () 7,978 8,446
Pension scheme contributions BIRESEEIHRR
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (TBEREEHE) 51 106
9,092 12,206
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN I &
Audit services BRI 1,176 1,000
Cost of inventories of wine products REATHEEERTE
recognised as expenses (Note (ii)) B (B 52i) 88,886 154,616
Cost of materials used for construction J R ERRTSETAME
and ancillary services (included in cost [PENGIN I %N
of sales) 654 226
Sub-contracting charges for construction & REERE D 2 EH
and ancillary services (included in cost (BT ASHEMAN)
of sales) 63,162 77,486
Advertisement expenses (included in BEREGIAEER
selling and distribution expense) PIEFAT) 21,492 25,008
Research and development expenses WA (GEATTHFAS)
(included in administrative expenses) 510 465
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BEMERETE
equipment
— Cost of sales —HERNA 3,092 3,148
— Administrative expense — 1T 175 9
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE
(included in administrative expenses) (BT ATTHRAR) 593 1,104
Expense relating to short-term leases REHE 2R
(included in administrative expenses) (BT ATTHRAR) 2,103 1,671
Provision for impairment loss on M FE R TR IR R Z
prepayments to suppliers (included in EEBEREGIA
administration expenses) THAX) - 1,807
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment loss ~ ftLA TR IBHFEEZ E E518
under expected credit loss model on: B TR R EEER
t#,/ (#[E)
— Trade receivables — B S EWNFIA 13,549 895
— Contract assets —GHEE (500) 992
— Deposits and other receivables — e M EMEUEIE
(not credit-impaired) (E3HEERE) 7 -
13,056 1,887
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

9.

10.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
(Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)
Notes:

[0] Total staff costs amounting to approximately HK$1,701,000
(2023: HK$1,851,000) are included in cost of sales; amounting to
approximately HK$5,636,000 (2023: HK$5,979,000) are included in
administrative expenses, amounting to approximately HK$416,000
(2023: HK$390,000) are included in research and development
expenses and amounting to approximately HK$225,000 (2023:
HK$212,000) are included in selling and distribution expenses.

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2024, included in the cost of
inventories of wine products recognised as expense is cost of
materials of approximately HK$82,987,000 (2023: HK$119,655,000)
used for production of wine products.

BRIRAT(EIR), R %I ()

IREERS ()

[0) @8 TRARKI1,701,0008 T (Z - =4 :
1,851,000/ 7T ) sH ASHE BN : 495,636,000
BIL(ZT==% : 5,979,000/ 7C) st ATTH
X - 49416,000/87C(=ZZF = =4 : 390,000
PETT) T AT B B 5 A & £9225,0008 T (= F
Z=4F :212,000/870) 5T ASHE R A A ©

(i) HE-Z-_WF+-_A=1+—HILFE ' &t
AERERAXNAEERTERATIARE
BB KB EE G MR X A8 4982,987,00078 7T (=
T — =4 : 119,655,000/ 7T) °

INCOME TAX EXPENSES SR
Continuing operations FERERY
2024 2023
—E-mE —Eo=4F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
TH#IT FET
Current tax: BNEARLIE :
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEFH
— Current income tax —BIERFTIS R = -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) IR EPTISH
([TZEFRERL])
— Current income tax —BNERFRIS R 2,297 5,490
Current tax expenses BIHAT B & 2,297 5,490

Hong Kong Profit Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI both years.

Under the Law of the EIT and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deferred tax can be utilised.

B S fRBAﬂﬂIEFi’:HE{EEH%%%)%
A 16.5%5T &

RERSHEREBRIES ([ REBR
ZES )RR RRP] - AN B E
FEEHEREREBRIEEEAR
MERIFTSH -

BRBECEMERERDEMSHEAER
&5 - A B BB R R R E 4F A R
/B25% °

REMBDEE SRR AELENBRIATRE
MRZEBRMNAITHEAE -

AR B8R N K R] BE A FE SR A st A AT B 4
HIHRERTE - MW BERELERBEE
7= o
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

Continuing operations (Continued)
The income tax expense from continuing operations for

10. FR{GIRBASZ(4&)

IFREERB (W)
FAREFERLLER 2 MEHRASA

the year can be reconciled to the loss/profit before taxation RIBFEERMEMEMKRERAH A
per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BEiRIER TR FEBIT
comprehensive income as follows:
2024 2023
—E-mE —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
(Loss)/profit before taxation KRR E ETERIR T AT
from continuing operations (E18), s 7 (28,340) 6,690
Tax expense at the Hong Kong Profits Tax 12 & /B F1SF K 16.5%:T &
rate of 16.5% E’ﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬂfi (4,676) 1,104
Tax effect of income not taxable for IBRTIRA MBS 5 2
tax purpose (5) 92)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PR A ORETEE
for tax purpose 3,379 882
Tax effect of temporary differences not KR 2 R ETEN
recognised M2 2,080 1
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZ RIBEBER
TR & 967 2,533
Previously unrecognised tax loss utiised 7RI AMERE B A 2 FRIBE1E (229) (282)
Tax effect of different tax rates of REMEEEERELCERD
subsidiaries operating in other HB AR TR ER
jurisdictions Wigs & 781 1,344
Income tax expense for the year FRFTSFAY 2,297 5,490

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has estimated
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$40,248,000 (2023: approximately HK$36,037,000).
Tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained earnings of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$2,920,000 (2023: HK$2,594,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

RZE-_WMF+=-_A=+—H K
EEREBEEZHABMBEEEY
40248000 T (ZFEZ=ZF + 4
36,037,000/ 7T) - REBELE 2 HIAE
BAERARNREEEREREEZ
NAIR AR R FERTE R F

REBEFBECEMSHRE AT N\F
—A—B  PEKE AR TR &
FmERZEBAMRLBBMR - A&
EERTENBARREENEN
RS 2 552,920,000 T ( — T - =4 ¢
2,594,000/ 7T ) R 4R A B TSR R NEHRIE
JEFATB AR o ot TY E A A S B ) 4R )
CER=Eo/KE - MBERE=8E0 6
TR B E o
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. ESFil:
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to REE AR EWARR BB R RGO H#
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies BENEANESHMOT

Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE_Z_ME+_A=+—HLFEE

Performance Pension
Salaries and related scheme Total
Fees allowances bonuses  contributions  remuneration
FaR 30} Bd
g - 13 HETEL AR b
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET TER
Executive directors HITES
Mr. LIANG Zhichao REREE(R_T_ME
(resigned on 19 April 2024) MATNEEHE) - - - - -
Mr. LU Zhaowei (appointedon ~ ERELE(RZS-IF
19 April 2024) MATHhARZHE) - 350 - 13 363
Mr. LI Ka Chun Gordon FRERE(NZSZNE
(appointed on 19 April 2024) NATNAEZA) - 84 - 4 88
Mr. XIAQ Yi EiRiAE - 240 - 12 252
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. ZHEN Jian ek 120 - - - 120
Ms. ZHAO Honggin HIELL 120 - - - 120
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan REELT 120 - - - 120
360 674 - 29 1,063
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 11. EFEH&(H)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE—T_=—Ft+-_A=1t—RHLFE

Performance Pension
Salaries and related scheme Total
Fees allowances bonuses contributions  remuneration
Fek 3 Ehe
ik R il bz HE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHEr TEL TEL FhET
Executive directors BiTER
Mr. LIANG Zhichao PEHBRE - - 3,120 - 3,120
Ms. CHEN Wuyou resigned on ~~ REEZHR-ZT-=%
28 April 2023) WA=+ \BEHE) - 79 - 4 83
Mr. XIAO Vi (appointed on HRrE(R_B_=F
21 August 2023) NAZ+—REZRF) - 87 - 4 91
Independent non-executive BUFBTES
directors
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Pong (resigned  REH%4(R-F-=%
on 17 October 2023) TRATHRET) 9% - - - 9
Mr. ZHEN Jian mEgE 120 - - - 120
Ms. ZHAO Honggin HIELL 120 - - - 120
Ms. CHAN Wai Yan (appointed on - BEELX+(A-F-=F
17 October 2023) TATEREZ) % - - - %
360 166 3,120 8 3,654

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023,
no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

There were no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023. None of the directors of the
Company and chief executive officer of the Company agreed
to waive or waived any emoluments in the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

RBE-_T-_MFER-_FT_=F+_A#
St HLEFE AREHMEREEX
MEARBE  FAREFMAKREEE
WS EFMAREE 2R - HMER
REBISHMIE -

REE-_ZT-_NFR-_FT-_=F+_A1
—+—HIEFE IEESREEAN%E
FMEXREREEANE - XREE
ERARNBITHAE B ER ZEHEIRK
BEHE-_ZT-_NER-ZFT=F+=A
=+—HILEFERNEREE -

FRATEEOMES TR IREETENR
RAERANEEEHREEORS o LB
VHRTEENMSEIEREEETAR
AIEFEMRS
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12. EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Five highest paid individuals

No director was included in the five highest paid individuals
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
one), details of whose remuneration are disclosed above.
The remuneration of the five (2023: four) highest paid
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of
the Company are as follows:

12. ERME&RABRERHAL
LEERHAL
BE_ZT_NE+_A=+—HLF

B AEEREAReSFATHITESES

—E-ZF %) HEMFEBEIIR
EXHEE - AR(ZEZ=F : O& )&
BFEAT(YIIEARRESRITHREAR)
ZEHBIT ¢

2024 2023

—ZT_mE it =

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TF#T FHET

Salaries and other benefits %ﬁi K EAMEF 3,541 3,334
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEIMHR 39 47
3,580 3,381

The number of these highest paid individuals where
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MeB Ty HEENZERSFALTZA
T

Number of individuals

A
2024 2023
—ZT_ME —E-=F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 1,000,000/ 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ TE
1,500,000/ 7T 1
5 4

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no
emolument was paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and senior management as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the five highest paid individuals and senior
management waived or agreed to waive any emolument
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of
the Company, its chief executive officer, senior management
and the five highest paid individuals as a discretionary
bonus.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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13. DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid, declared or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2024, nor has any dividend been proposed since
the end of the reporting period (2023: Nil).

14. LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

13.

14,

B2
BE-_Z-_NF+-_A=+—RI-EE
BERAN AL BRKEIRMS - Bk

EERE AmEHREMERZETH
fEB(ZE—=F : ) -

BREBR

REBEREER

ENNSIE Y DN P Tiiii“‘A%i‘%
REAR N EEEBRZIA TBURRTE -

Loss BiR
2024 2023
—ZEmE —ECo=E
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners of N2 &1 H AFE(G FE RN EE
the Company (32,652) (5,635)
Less: loss for the year from discontinued — J& : B 4% IH4& & 5 FE N E1E
operation - 2,121
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic ~ FLEt B EKEEE 2 FIRE
and diluted loss per share for continuing A& #5EEIE M = 2 k58
operations (32,652) (8,514)
Number of shares K& E
2024 2023
—ZTmE —ECo=E
’000 ‘000
TB T
Weighted average number of ordinary Eytuﬂ'*hhﬂxﬁ$&§&7§%?§
shares for the purpose of calculating T2 LB INETHE
basic and diluted loss per share 1,506,911 1,126,396

(a)  Basic loss per share
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purpose of calculating basic loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2023 has been adjusted
to reflect the share consolidation and effect of bonus
element in rights issue on 16 February 2023 and 23
April 2023, respectively.

(b)  Diluted loss per share
The calculation of diluted loss per share is the same as
basic loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 as there were no potential ordinary
shares during both years.

(@ FREFER
R EHE_ZT_=ZF+=A8
E+—E¢¢§§%%$%Eﬁ%
LB IEE FAAE
IR —E-=F - A+ HE=
T_—FNA -+ =HDRETE
e O REARAI TS H L2 o

b) FREEER
AERE—T_NFR-_T_=F
ToA=ZT - ALEFESRESE
BEgRERERAR  RESW
EFE R EEE L B
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

14. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 14.

From continuing and discontinued operations
The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing
and discontinued operations attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

SERBIR(E)
REARREERORILEERS
AR FE ARAR S B EGERE K
I 25 2 R B BRI T RS
oy

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to owners et E &R EA K #EE 18
of the Company for the purpose of (=P VNSt 2= PN
calculating basic and diluted loss per FAEE
share (32,652) (5,635)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation is HK
cents 0.19 per share for the year ended 31 December 2023
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company from the discontinued operation of HK$2,121,000
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and
diluted loss per share from continuing operations.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I &ERR =R ERA S

P Ao 8 EXX AR ER 2 X
ZBBREARLEEERN D BEF -

KREHEORILESER
ERARAEB ABEERIGCEERS
FANEEA2,121,0008 70 K& Xl
iﬁﬂ&%ﬁ25%§$&%§%%m
P BE-_E_=%+-_A=+—H
HFE  BRIEEEEBHERELS
B AFR0.19781l -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% - RERRH

Plant and

Office Leasehold Motor machinery and
equipment  improvement vehicles equipment Total

BREREE
LN HEKE #BE RRfE 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT Thx TR TET TAT

Cost: BE:
As at 1 January 2023 W-Z-=%F—-HF-H 581 303 4,126 33,802 38,812
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-FRBATF (59) - - - (59)
Exchange alignment X - - - (799) (799)
As at 31 December 2023 RZTZ=%1_AR
and 1 January 2024 =+-Ak
—Z-EE-A-H 522 303 4,126 33,003 37,954
Additions ARE - - - 3,146 3,146
Disposal HE - (149) - - (149)
Exchange alignment R - - - (1,134) (1,134)
As at 31 December 2024 RZBZMmE+ZA

=+-A 522 154 4,126 35,015 39,817

Accumulated depreciation: ~ RiH7E
As at 31 December 2022 and WZEZ—%F+-A

1 January 2023 =+-Ak
“2-=%-f-H 546 4 4,126 6,156 10,832
Charge for the year FREH 2 4 - 3,148 3,174
Disposal HE (46) - - - (46)
Exchange alignment R - - - (159) (159)
As at 31 December 2023 R-B_=%
and 1 January 2024 +ZA=+-8k
—Z-mFE-R-H 522 8 4,126 9,145 13,801
Charge for the year FREH - 175 - 3,092 3,267
Disposal HE - (29) - - (29)
Exchange alignment & L A% - - - (355) (355)
As at 31 December 2024 RZBZME+ZR
=t-8 522 154 4,126 11,882 16,684
Net book value: RESE:
As at 31 December 2024 AZEZNE
+ZA=1+-H - - - 23,133 23,133
As at 31 December 2023 i —d
TZA=+-H - 295 - 23,858 24,153
The above items of property, plant and equipment, after it - BERREER (Kt R E%
taking into account the residual values, are depreciated on BER)ZRUTFELXEAERETE
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: E -
Office equipment 20% MRERE 20%
Leasehold improvement Over lease term HEXE RIBHER
Motor Vehicles 25%-30% BN 25%-30%
Plant and machinery and ~ 10% IS SE 10%
equipment
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. (FHESE
HK$’000
FHT
Cost: 5% 4
As at 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023 and R-ZE-_=%—H—H8 -
1 January 2024 B+ -A=+—AK
—ToNFE—-A—H 3,026
Additions NE 674
Termination of leases HERIE (3,026)
As at 31 December 2024 R-EB_NME+"A=+—H 674
Accumulated depreciation: FEHINE :
As at 1 January 2023 R-ZE-_=F—H—H 851
Charge for the year FRZH 1,333
As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R-E_=F+-_A=+—HE=Z
—HmHE—H—H 2,184
Charge for the year FRZH 593
Termination of leases HERIE (2,721)
As at 31 December 2024 R-E_mNE+—"A=+—H 56
Net book value: IREBE :
As at 31 December 2024 BR-E_MFE+-RA=+—H 618
As at 31 December 2023 RZZEZ=F+=ZA=+—H 842
2024 2023
tJod 1 —F_=%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Total cash outflow for leases HEWNER SN
(capital element) (BAx) 620 1,370
Total cash outflow for leases HEMNRRS R
(interest element) (FEBTER) 20 68

Lease liabilities of HK$621,000 (2023: HK$885,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$618,000
(2023: HK$842,000) as at 31 December 2024. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Expense related to short-term lease in respect of rented
premises is disclosed in Note 9.

For both years, the Group leases properties for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one to two years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

RZZE-_mMFEF+-_A=+— E BHER
FAEAE621,0008 L (T =4 :
%wm%m)&ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
618,000/ 7L (ZF = =4 : 842,000/%8
7o) o BRHEEARFENHEEEROER
RSN MERE MRS - 8
EEETSARNERIER -

5T TR A BB MO B ST T 2
1955 -

RBEFE AKEREVERR
B HEAHN— iﬁlﬁEZlmi,ﬁﬂJ
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

17. INVENTORIES 17. &8
2024 2023
tJod 1 3 —E=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Wine products B

- Raw materials (note (i)) — R CPEEG)) 84,767 95,617
~ Finished goods — RUPpK in 4,548 3,229
89,315 98,846

Note: fEsE -

18.

(0] As at 31 December 2024, raw materials comprise of wine
products held for packaging and processing into finished goods of
approximately HK$82,035,000 (2023: HK$93,078,000).

(i) R-ZE-_WFE+-_A=+—H0  BHEa
FERERERINIKRKRABEERLD
82,035,000/ 7T (=& — =4 : 93,078,000/

JL) ©

TRADE RECEIVABLES BoEK®RIE
2024 2023
—ZEZ_ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T FET
Trade receivables B S ElEE 118,232 112,760
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses /UZ : Tﬁﬁﬁfmggﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ (15,058) (1,530)
103,174 111,230

At 1 January 2023, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to HK$29,652,000 (net of allowance
for expected credit losses).

The Group’s credit term with its customers for construction
and ancillary services is, in general, 7 to 30 days (2023:
7 to 30 days). For customers of sales of wine products,
invoices are due upon within 90 days (2023: 180 days). The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management.

The ageing analysis of the gross amount of trade receivables

RZE-=%F—F—8 ¥kB88PAY
2 B 5 FEW R TE 529,652,00058 7T (F1 5K

BEHMEEEERE) -

AEEpEIMEERBETEREFN

ZERE—RATEI0R(ZZ

Z=F:7F

30K) - HNBRERFENTP, » #R

ROOK(ZE-=4F:

180K ) NEHE - &
EEBRIEH EREEERFE -
EIE T HEEa SR -

=R

REZAM2IINE 5 R FREER

based on the invoice date, is as follows: ERERDATIOT
2024 2023
—ETmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current to 30 days BIHAZE30K 37,443 82,329
31-60 days 31-60K 8,897 15,063
61-90 days 61-90K 8,787 14,523
91-180 days 91-180% 28,267 845
181-365 days 181-365K 2,433 -
Over 365 days 365 KA E 32,405 -
118,232 112,760
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The ageing analysis of the net carrying amount of trade
receivables based on the invoice date is as follow:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ = /\ﬁf%i&% MT D_II_

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. BHEWMHRIA(IE)

REZAR2I0E 5 RUGRREF
BEORESTIT

2024 2023
—E_MmE —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH#T FBT

Within 30 days 30X 36,734 81,182
31-60 Days 31-60% 8,835 14,872
61-90 days 61-90% 8,726 14,339
91-180 days 91-180% 27,884 837
181-365 days 181-365% 729 =
Over 365 days 365K A 20,266 -
Total 5T 103,174 111,230

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate net
carrying amount of HK$48,879,000 (2023: HK$837,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$21,013,000 (2023: HK$Nil) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as
in default because the Group considers good cooperation
relationships with these debtors exist and with good
repayment record. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out in
Note 29(b).

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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AEENESREUFELERARER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 19. BVHEE AR
2024 2023
—EZmE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THETT
Contract assets: BREE
Construction services EERRS 22,250 43,350
Retention receivables FEBREE & - 2,545
22,250 45,895
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : TEEAZ &R BB (508) (1,008)
21,742 44,887
Contract liabilities: BHEE:
Construction services ZERRH 435 135
Sales of wine products HEREER 2,411 -
2,846 135
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights EHEBEEFTEHEAEFRRE TAER K
to consideration for work completed but not yet billed BEHEENTEMKBREZENE
because the rights are conditional on the Group’s future 8 JTEREBREINNEURNAERK K
performance. The contract assets are transferred to MR - FSREFKAEGMHRE 6898
trade receivables when the rights become unconditional. EEREEFEKZE - ABaETE
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advanced HREPIWENEMNRESR - HElkz
consideration received from customers, for which revenue is TR IR A RS S E mAEEER o
recognised based on the progress of the provision of related
services or goods.
The balance of contract assets and contract liabilities are AHNEBERAGHEEZ ETESE—F

expected to be recovered/settled within one year. AUgE4EE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

The Group’s contract works include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period
once milestones are reached. A deposit is typically payable
up front and this has resulted in a contract liability at early
stages of the project.

The terms of some construction contracts stipulate that the
customers withhold a portion of total contract sum (usually
5%) and will be settled in accordance with the terms of the
respective contracts. The terms and conditions in relation
to the release of retention vary from contract to contract.
The amount of retention monies is included in contract
assets until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the
Group’s work satisfactorily passing inspection.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets for the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out in
Note 29(b).

Movement in the gross amount of contract assets balances
during the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as
follows:

19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 19. SHEE AR(E)
(Continued)
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HEHERENEESHEBERNTEN—R
contract assets recognised are as follows: XAt ﬂ%?fﬁﬁlﬂ? :
Construction contract works BRmanIe

AEEANTREEEZERAFER DM
BASRONHRARR(-BERER) - %
E—RATEY  LWCERBNHEL
BHAE-

BOERAONGKITATEANES
MBS —BD CBE /%) MAH
FIEBRBEABES ONIRTETEE

B R AR & VIR R 1T R E R &

HWME - REZEBVFTABRHNEERE
REMER - TARAEEHREFTZ
RN R MR A S B 8 T2 JBF 8
BRE -

&I—?—Ei&—?——fﬁ—'— H
= t+—HBLEFEZENEERBEN G
BEERAKTEE29(b) °

BHE_Z_WFE-_F-_=F+=A
T+ HULFE AHNEEABLAERN
ZEmT

Contract assets aHEE

HK$’'000
FET
As at 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—HF—H 8,676

Transfers from the contract assets to REXNEEEREE HEINGIA
trade receivables (6,131)
Unbilled revenue recognised ERERZ RARKE 43,350

As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZEBE-=F+—_A=+—HK
—ZE-NF—A—H 45,895

Transfers from the contract assets to WEHEEERZE S EWGIE
trade receivables (45,895)
Unbilled revenue recognised ERERZ RARKE 22,250
As at 31 December 2024 R-E-MNE+=-BA=+—H 22,250
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

19. CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES 19. SHEE AR(E)
(Continued)
Construction contract works (Continued) BRanIE(E)
The expected timing of recovery or settlement for gross RZEZ_WFEFRZZT_=ZF+=H
amount of contract assets as at 31 December 2024 and =+—H  KEHEEEGOEELEN
2023 is as follows: TERHESRZ BT ¢
2024 2023
ot ~Jod 1 3 —T_=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Within one year —FRA 22,250 45,895
The drop in contract assets in 2024 was the result of a TECMEENEENTREANRFE
faster issuance of progress billings to the customers for the AMIRMHEERSREFENEERES
construction services delivered before the year end. HYREEIR o
Movement in the contract liabilities balances during the HE=_ZT-mF &7 E-—-F+=H8
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 is as follows: =+—HIFE GHBGEEHNED
LU
Contract liabilities AR
Sales of
Construction wine
services products Total
WEES
BER ER& et
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHET FHT FHET
As at 1 January 2023 RZE=Z=F—H—H 599 - 599
Consideration received from FREKREFPREBRD
customers during the year wRKE ST
over the amounts of revenue
recognised 135 - 135
Revenue recognised during the year iWEﬁEu s (FEAFER
that was included in GHEE)
contract liability at beginning of
year (599) - (599)
As at 31 December 2023 and RZEZ=F+=A
1 January 2024 =t+t—HERZZE-WEF
—H—H 135 - 135
Consideration received from FARWEPRERRBS
customers during the year RN E R
over the amounts of revenue
recognised 300 2,411 2,711
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZTE_MHFE+_H
=+—H 435 2,411 2,846
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

19.

20.

CONTRACT ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

Construction contract works (Continued)
Contract liabilities (Continued)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction services

When the Group receives a deposit before the contract
work commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised on the
project exceeds the amount of the deposit. It is common
practice on the Group’s construction contracts to require a
deposit before work commences.

Sales of wine products
Contract liabilities represent the deposit amounts received
from certain customers when they place orders.

The increase in contract liabilities in 2024 was mainly due to
the increase in advances received from customers in relation
to the sales of wine products and provision of construction
service the end of the reporting period.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

19.

20.

EHRE AfRGE)

BRanIE(E)

aaREE)
HERRANEBESEBNTEN—R
SAHEFIT ¢

BERE
AEBESN IR TATKEUZS R
BESHNTBELEMNAR  EEA
BREZANKSBEEESSBAIL - ED
THERRE/AREZRANNEER
&l -

HE R E an
BHMBBREAESETERL TR BRI
HEEH

—E_MFERNAREMNEERMBNR

SHURGL I BB E m R HE R
AR PRI INFAER -

#Be  RAARRRAEMERRET

2024 2023

tJod 1 3 —E=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTHET FAT

Deposits e 324 415
Prepayments (Note (i) TR SRIE (M EE) 165,413 157,426
Other receivables (Note (i) EAth FEMGRIA (ML (i) 574 3
VAT recoverable A Y B EFR 2,386 2,666
168,697 160,510

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2024, prepayments mainly comprised prepaid
cost for procurement of raw materials for consumer goods business
of approximately HK$143,657,000 (2023: HK$159,170,000).

(i) As at 31 December 2024, included in the other receivables with gross
amount of HK$7,869,000 (2023: HK$7,869,000) was advanced
to independent third parties. Based on the past due status of the
debtors, the directors of the Company consider that a debtor is
credit-impaired. Allowance for expected credit loss of HK$7,869,000
(2023: HK$7,869,000) has been recognised.

(iii) Details of impairment assessment of deposits and other receivables
for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out in Note
29(b).
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(i) RZZZWF+ZA=+—8 ' st AHAM
JE W R B 4R 5R7,869,000/8 L (— T - =4 :
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

21.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and cash
on hand held by the Group. Bank balances earn interests at
floating rate based on daily bank deposit rates and is placed
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Included in cash and bank balances in the consolidated
statement of financial position are mainly the following
amounts denominated in currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate:

21.

B & B R ITHEER
ReRRITEBBERITRESRAEE
FR/AENRE - ROTEHRETER

TERMRLOF SRR E - A7
BT R B8 4O S 58 RAFERTT o

HAGARBRRENES RRTES
B TR B2
5b 2 SR RHE 2 3R -

2024 2023
—E_mE T4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

RMB AR 10 -

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s bank balances and
cash denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB56,674,000 (2023: RMB32,434,000), equivalent to
approximately HK$60,317,000 (2023: HK$35,681,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies as
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set
out in Note 29(b).

RZZE-WMF+=-—A=+—H A£H
DARBTEMNRITEBRIIRSH A A
R#56,674,000c(—ZE=_=F : AR
wm%mmw ﬁ“%%mawm@%
JL(—ZT = =% : 35,681,000/87T) °

N QmﬁﬁﬁﬁMT% EmmA
R H IR oM 52 o i A R L0 3 50
EIBIEN AR - ERRANEETERE

IRITEE SRR E AR IB R M FE29(b) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

22,

23.

TRADE PAYABLES

22. BHEFMNREA

2024 2023

—EmEF —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT F#T

Trade payables = AN 2,488 26,648

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date is as follows:

BHRNFEENEZBHZREINT
W

2024 2023
—E_E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FET
Current to 30 days BIHAZE30K 2,031 25,012
Over 90 days 90K £ 457 1,636
2,488 26,648
The credit period on purchases of certain goods and BEET IR 2 5 BB A0E30K

services is within 0 to 30 days.

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER
PAYABLES

AR

23. FERTFASZI R H MBI

2024 2023
—EZMmE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FBT
Other payables E M 3kIE 538 400
Accrued expenses FEETFX
— Accrued staff cost —JEFFB IR 6,600 4,821
— Accrued expenses (note (j)) —FEETRZ (B7220) 7,670 5,595
Interest payable FERTFIE 20,787 5,295
35,595 16,111
Note: Wit -
0] Accrued expenses 0] FERHBASE

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group's accrued expenses
mainly comprise (i) accrued design consultancy fee to a vendor
amounting to approximately HK$1,324,000 (2023: HK$1,324,000)
and (ji) accrued placement commission to a placing agent amounting
to approximately HK$1,650,000 (2023: HK$1,268,000).

RZZ-_WF+=A=+—8 it ALEE
JESt X EEBIE()ME 7 1 BT R TR
##91,324,00058 71 ( = ZF = =4 : 1,324,000
B RHAEERENEAFRESHESO
1,650,000/ 7T (= Z = = 4 : 1,268,000/8
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

24. OTHER BORROWINGS 24, HthfER
2024 2023
—E_ME —E=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current; BNER
Borrowings from BN RIEK
— Party A (Note (i) — 75 (K7520) 37,500 37,500
— Party B (Note (i) — 7 (Bat0) 30,000 30,000
— Party C (Note (i) — A (K1az (i) 4,522 4,494
— Party D (Note (iv)) — T H(KaE0v) 2,853 1,657
—Party E — X7 141 -
75,016 73,651
Notes: et -

(i)

(i)

()

The borrowing from Party A, an independent third party, is unsecured.
The original maturity date was June 2023, and extended to April
2024. The effective interest rate for the year ended 31 December
2024 was 31% per annum (2023: 12% per annum). As at 31
December 2024, the borrowing from Party A with principal amount
of HK$37,500,000 was overdue for repayment and together with the
overdue interests thereon was not repaid. The Company received
a statutory demand from Party A in September 2024, which was
subsequently lapsed.

The borrowing from Party B, an independent third party, is unsecured
and repayable on 5 January 2024. The effective interest rate for the
year ended 31 December 2024 was 12% per annum (2023: 6%).
As at 31 December 2024, the borrowing from Party B with principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 was overdue for repayment and together
with the overdue interests thereon was not repaid.

The borrowing from Party C, an independent third party, is
unsecured. The original maturity date was January 2024, and was
extended to July 2025 pursuant to a supplementary agreement. The
effective interest rate for the year ended 31 December 2024 was 3%
per annum (2023: 3% per annum).

The borrowing from Party D, an independent third party, is unsecured.
The effective interest rate for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
3% per annum (2023: 3% per annum).

(i)

(i)

()

REBLE =R OERBELT - J?i
P A-ZS-_=FA WOERE
ZNFENA - BEZZ-_WF+=A= +f
Etiﬁé?%iﬂtm%(*?:_i F
M&E12%) c RZZT_MF+_A=+—H -
7K 4 B8 437,500,000/ 7L Y B 5 {5 SR E 8 2
B8 - BEREHFE M AEE - ARRRZ
- MENARBFHEEEESR - REK
BE1B I o

REBAIE=FLHNEBERAERABER
ZE-NF-ARBEE BE-T-NF
TZA=T-BLEFENEBRFFEAR12%
(ZZE==F 1 6%) R-ZZE-_MNF+=A4
=+—H ' &R&%/430,000,000%8 T8 L7
BREBHEE - ERBHF S AR EE -

KEBIULE =TT AT EFRREEIT - BIF
rpE RENPAR-_FT_MF—5 -
YEERE-_T-_AFLA -BE-F-NO
EWL ﬂ T HIEFENERFNER3%
TR =F FHR3%) o

REBULE=TT HEERREEN - BE
:§:E¢+*ﬂ_+ HILFENERS
FERBI%(ZFZ=4F : FFIE3%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ = /ﬁﬂv’%i&% Fﬁ uf

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES

26.

25 #HEAR

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET FAET
Analysed as DA
- Current — e 329 885
— Non-current —IERH 292 =
621 885
Lease liabilities payable ENREaE
— Within one year ——FNR 329 885
— More than one year but not ——F A HB BB E
exceeding two years 292 -
621 885

The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities
were 7.15% (2023: from 4.61% to 12.25%).

[ERRERGENEESE
(CE2-=F : N T 461%E12.25%) °

R E7.15%

SHARE CAPITAL 26. B&E
Number of Number of
Ordinary Ordinary
Shares Shares Nominal
of HK$0.01 of HK$0.02 value
SRmEC.01ET SREE.02ET
B ER®E BY%ERSE i -]
'000 '000 HK$'000
Tk Tk FET
Authorised: EE
As at 1 January 2023 R-Z-=%—H—H 1,000,000 - 10,000
Share consolidation (note (j) W‘Nﬁ(/f/fﬁm (1,000,000) 3,000,000 50,000
As at 31 December 2023 and 2024 R-EZZERZEZNE
+Z-B=+—-H - 3,000,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREE :
As at 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—F—H 864,000 - 8,640
Share consolidation (note (i) BB Z)) (864,000) 432,000 -
Issue of shares under rights issue (note (i) TRIEERRETTIG (B7230)) - 864,000 17,280
As at 31 December 2023 R-E_=%+-A=+-H - 1,296,000 25,020
Shares issued under placing agreement R IEE & iR E BTN
(note (ii)) (Hiziy) - 259,200 5,184
As at 31 December 2024 R-Z2-mE+=-A=+—H - 1,555,200 31,104

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

)

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 15
December 2022, ordinary resolutions were passed in respect of (a)
the share consolidation of every two issued and unissued ordinary
shares of the Company at par value of HK$0.01 consolidated into
one ordinary share at par value of HK$0.02 each; (b) increase in
the authorised share capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000
divided into 1,000,000,000 Existing Shares to HK$60,000,000 divided
into 6,000,000,000 Existing Shares (or 3,000,000,000 consolidated
Shares after the Share consolidation becoming effective). On 14
February 2023, the authorised share capital of the Company became
HK$60,000,000 consisting of 3,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.02 each.

Subject to the share consolidation and the increase in authorised
share capital having become effective (i.e. 14 February 2023), a rights
issue of two rights shares for every one consolidated share was
approved by the shareholders of the Company. 864,000,000 rights
shares of HK$0.02 each were issued and allotted on 14 April 2023 at
issue price of HK$0.14 per rights share. The net proceeds amounted
to approximately HK$118,960,000. The net proceeds from the
subscription were used for the general working capital of the Group
and for development of the Group’s consumer goods business as
detailed in the Company’s announcement on 14 April 2023.

On 15 March 2024, the Company completed a share placing for an
aggregate of 259,200,000 shares at a placing price of HK$0.105
per share to independent investors. The gross proceed from the
placing was approximately HK$27,216,000, the net proceeds was
approximately HK$26,835,000 and HK$22,032,000 was recognised
as share premium. Details of the placement are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 19 January 2024 and 15 March
2024.

All the shares issued ranked pari passu in all respects with the
existing shares in issue.

U

(i)

(i)

)

26. B&&(i8)

Bt -

ERARBR_ZE__F+-_A+HBRTH
RRFHIAE L - BH@BETRKREETR
RBETEREECOVETHARRLBEBA
HAE—RERMmEC.E LT BN
APt ()2 B #)EE IR 2N H 10,000,000
7 78 (% /A1,000,000,000 % 38 A B& 1) 18 hn
Z60,000,0007% 7t ( 4 4 6,000,000,000 3% 3,
A1) (S 17 & Bf 4 L% 8,000,000,000
REHBRMD)HEBRZRERB -KR=ZF
Z=FZR+WA  ARRETERAZEE A
60,000,000/ 7T+ B #EE R EEC.0278 JTH
3,000,000,0008% & &%

FRRD A O RIEIEE A LR (A =F
Z=FZA+MH) AARKRREBBRIES
A —RE RO EZRNR AR DR EE
HEITHA - FAEE0.0278 7THY864,000,000
BRAL AR AR A — 2 — =4 P10 B + 00 B iR 31T
BEERERRMN014E T T AT REZE -
B3R IB F 5849 5118,960,000/ 7T AT
BREFEAEAREN —REEESRE
BRASERNEBEEREY  FBR2HK
RNANZEZ=FHA+OANAE

RZZEZWFE=A+HA  AQRZEKAE
3% A E L& A ££259,200,000 % B 7 - AL
EEATIR005E T - ILEMEFIALE
#) /27,216,000 7T * IS HRIEFENA
26,835,000 7T * 22,032,000/ T E & i%
MEEER REFBHREARFBHRZ
T-ME-A+ABER-E-MNE=ZA+H
BEHAE -

FAECETRNRAE T EMREAD ETR

BHEERSES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B B9k MY

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. MEERIEETE

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on 13 August
2015 (“Share Option Scheme”), the Company may grant
share options to any directors, employees, consultants,
customers, suppliers of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any entity in which the Group holds any
equity interests who, in the sole discretion of the board,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group so as to provide incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the success of the Group’s
operation.

The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares
in issue from time to time. The total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at the date of listing of the shares unless
the Company obtains the approval of the shareholders in
general meeting for refreshment.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options (whether exercised or outstanding)
granted in any 12-month period to (i) each eligible
participant must not exceed 1.0% of the total number of
shares in issue; and (i) a substantial shareholder of the
Company or an independent non-executive director must
not exceed 0.1% of the total number of shares in issue and
not exceed HK$5.0 million in aggregate value.

The exercise price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Share Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 12 August 2025 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

From 8 September 2015 (date of Listing) to 31 December
2024, no share option was granted by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in Directors’
Report.

Hope Life International Holdings Limited U&&EISIZRHRA S

BRER-_ZT-—AFNAT=ARKZE
Pergst I ([ BT &) - RAF AR
EZe2ENRBR/ENHHARE
BEERBREDAEBROANEEEAKE
REIAEEFGH TR RENEAER
MEMES - B8  BH - -FF  &Em
RIS L EAE - UREER
AEBEERDIEL ERIEHRR KD
# e

RAR 5 B8 A i st 8 AN X BHE I E AR fE
BrEst BIE R E M A RFITEN 2 H KR
TTEBBIEETE M A TR R EITH
EaBRPEE  ARATSEBTHEH
1T 42 HI30%  RIRFE B T 81 I
AR B fe] B A BOHE AT 81 AJ BE IR th A9
FEIERTY MR BE - TNEBER
Befn £ B HIE BT B HI10% -
BIEA DB RIRRA S EEARIE
B

FAMEfRT121E A HAfE A E B iR BB AR 4 (T~
REA TS AR T ) BETTE M 81T RS
BIRMEHE : ((MmgaEK2H
AR BINSHBBEETROBHE 2
1.0% : K(i)fMA AR 7 £ ERREXIE T
EHTEEHRL - AN FEBBEETR
DA Z01% M EETBBRAAEET °

TTREEMBAZ DR PR H B B7E R
R BRERMAFIZWHE © ([iIDR
ERRHARMALEIZ AEBIME
BMERMI 2 FHKRHE - Rt
HEZRSE -

BREFSZFHR/I0F  UHR_-F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ ﬁle% i& ?% MT D_II_

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXEBEER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital AEEEAERHZHERREALAS
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going lTi BICEMRES) - MM AREEBR

concern in order to fund its construction business and wine
business, provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. There was no change in the Group’s
approach to capital management during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing its total other borrowings (being the
interest-bearing liabilities of the Group) by total equity.

BEEBRHEES - SERREHRDR -
REM?‘FU@*B%@%%LJN@ & 255
BENER - UREE R o

AEEEBMEHECREREANG
B NEREFUKFESA SRR
= BOR B3R E R 2 0 E AN E

B2 ARG TE  WRELER
MBI HEREBELRAE - BER
KABRENGRE  AEEAESHAER
BRSNS - MBRRREE AR
TTHIRR

4R B3 R R A (5 B e B A
B HE_B-_MER_B_=F
ToA=+—RILEE  AREEAR
EERRRETE -

AEBEEREEABLXERERN &
ERELRHZEAQEMER(ARE
MRt E B EBRIABERETE -

2024 2023

ot 11 - 3 —T=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Other borrowings (Note 24) H A& KM at24) 75,016 73,651
Total equity FED &N 351,604 363,471
Gearing ratio BEEBELLE 21.3% 20.3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ = /\ﬁf%i&% MT D_II_

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

(a)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 290. #FTH
Categories of financial instruments (a) £MIRZEB
2024 2023
—ZE_E —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT THTT
Financial assets: SMEE :
At amortised cost big: 37 [N 166,197 152,056
2024 2023
—E_mE —E-=F
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
F#ExT FHET
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
At amortised cost SRR 107,120 111,589
Financial risk management objectives and (b) HMEREREEREBERBKFK

(b)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade payables, accrued expenses and
other payables and other borrowings. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to other borrowings and lease liabilities.
Besides, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to cash and bank balances (see
Note 21 for details of the bank balances). The Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate bank balances which is limited due to the
short maturity. The directors of the Company consider
that the exposure to cash flow interest rate on bank
deposits are insignificant.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did
not have any floating rate borrowings, no sensitivity
analysis on interest rate exposure is presented
accordingly.

AEBEZTESRTABRESE
WkE -~ e - EREEGRIE - 31

T RBITHEER - BEHENRA
J& 5t 58 S I B B AN SRR e EL At

%?ﬂ SRIT A ZFIBER ST
cHZESHMTAEEHEZRARE 2
?‘EﬂTH CHNERRE - EER
//m@é{iﬂ JESZ :ﬁ;Z:’;HEAZ
KHINWNT - REEEEEE
&?Euxgyﬂ& J«/(ﬁﬁ&ﬂvﬁxﬁ
HEREBGEE i ©

F1 3 R p%
AEENRAFEMNERREZRH
tERRAESEER - 1o - K
SEAERERE e RIRITERE BN
RenEMXRB(EEAERTES
ISR HEME21) o AEEEA
HEZBIRITEBBENRERE
FI=RER - BHEAHRRE - Bk
BR - RRABEFRABRITERN
HeREeFERBILTERK -

RZE-MFR=_T=_=F+=H
_+ B AEBEWEERTEE
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F*’Vfﬁ



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l\\/T\

MG HRR M T

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did
not hold any other assets and liabilities which are
exposed to interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk arising
from deposits, other receivables, cash and bank
balances and accruals and other payables which are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) held by or owned
by a Group entity whose functional currency is not
RMB. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

(b)

20. &R T A (I8)

MR EE B Rk R E(E)

FlEmpE(E)
R-F-_MFER-_F_=F+_#
=t+—B  AKREXKRFAETMAE
WM XERNEMEENRAE -

N £ B B A0 8 AE 7] F) R E R
Ko A EREBERMEER -
WA B e E BRI R E R
K[ g e o

b s I B
AEEHBRENGEEELIFARE
TARBDOAEEERTALHE
BHUAREHENRS - HibfE
WRIR & RIRTTAERR A M AT
B P Ko L8 R OR T 2 A SN
[\ o N B AL SN SR
B o R - EEEERIMNERR -
W KRBT EREBLEFEAINE
[z -

AEERHRE A HASNETHENE
BEEMEBRERRENT -

2024 2023
—E_MmE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FiBT
Monetary assets: EHEE:
RMB AR 10 -
2024 2023
—E_ME —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#T FET
Monetary liabilities: HE¥ARE:
RVB AR 600 600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ ﬁle% i& i‘% MT D_II_

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &M T R(#E)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BMERBREERBERBK(E)
policies (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued) Sh WP (1)
Sensitivity analysis HREFES T

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in the HK$ against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate

TRAVAKEE BT A ARBINE
ZER TR T BE% < BRRE o
RARREEEEABREINER

used when reporting foreign currency risk internally B2 ASBIERGUREL X

to key management personnel and represents ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁtbfﬁﬁﬁf‘%ﬂi?T%/\
management’s assessment of the reasonably BEEEL 23 - BREDITE
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The BRERRNEERIINETEERER - I

sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. A negative number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax profit/increase in
post-tax loss where the HK$ weaken 5% against
the relevant currency. For a 5% strengthening of the
HK$ against the relevant currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit/loss and total
comprehensive income/loss, and the balances below
would be positive.

REARBEE% < SN [ R B H) 3 &
EZIEH o NX B BRI IER
B ES%FRR B SRR,
PR & E5IR 3L AN o HHOEITH AR
EMAESY - /Eﬁ?éﬁi
Ak EIERENTEN RS
KR - N ERE2ES -

Loss/profit after tax

BRiEEE 2R
2024 2023
—E_MmE —Eo=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FAET
RMB AR (30) (30)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank
balances, trade receivables, contract assets, deposit
and other receivables. The carrying amounts of these
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Bank balances

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to be close to
zero and no provision was made as of 31 December
2024 and 2023.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables and contract
assets. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables and contract assets have been assessed
based on individual credit risk characteristic and past
due status. The Group has also identified the key
economic variables impacting credit risk and expected
credit loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, trade receivables
and contract assets that are individually significant
have been separately assessed for impairment.
The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the
background and reputation of the customers,
historical settlement records and past experience.

(b)

20. &R T A (I8)

MR EE B Rk R E(E)

15 52 1 B e o0 {E B M
AEENEERREIERARITE
B BHRUGRIA  BREE &
& REAMEUGRIE - ZEEHIR
ﬁﬁﬁ%$gl%iﬂ§3%ﬁﬁ
&R AEER

R7ITAS,
AERRITHREMS - HRRS
HFREERIORT  AREER

ERERERE - BEXZHEHFB
EWEEL - FAik - RTINS HTE
BEEBBREXIMARLET 8
TECNER-_ZTE_=F+=A
=+ — B REHREE -

EEEMELHEZENRTRLE
HEE
AEBRABCETREEMBR

EEAFESRMRENTAIERER
TE%’%%% CRERIAFHABE S
EUKERGHNEEER2HE
HERERRE - RITERBEER
EiE - BHRIGAERENEED
RBAE R 215 B B4 5 K g B R
NEtHE - ARBECREZEEER
R R IEHMEEERN E BEEE
e HERTAANABEA SN
HIRTIEE#YL o

R-F-_MFER-_F_=F+_#
=+—RH  ERERNE R
ARAHEECEBNERME - &
SERBEFPHNESNEE BE
RETHSOBER R - FHAEE
Wk TR AT [ 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Hope Life International Holdings Limited I % Bl k2= % 5 PR A 5]

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group’s trade receivables arise from construction
and ancillary services and sales of wine. As at the end
of the year, the top five debtors and the largest debtor
accounted for approximately 97.9% and 37.0%
(2023: 98.7% and 42.0%) of the Group’s gross trade
receivables balance, respectively. In view of the history
of business dealings with the debtors and the sound
collection history of the receivables due from them,
management believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from these debtors saved for the debtor
related to the impaired trade receivable disclosed in
the below. Management makes periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade and other receivables
based on historical payment records, the length of
overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. For construction and ancillary services, trade
receivables are due within 7 to 30 days from the date
of billing. For customers of sales of wine products,
invoices are due upon within 90 days. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

(b)

20. &R T A (R)

M REEE B R RE(E)
125 %5 J B 5 i (L A £ (4R)

EEAVELNE SN A
AL E(E)
REBME 5 EUERIER B 2%
BLEARTS MOBBEHE - NFER
WEXE%A&%kEﬁAM$
SEEFRERWNRELESAED R
ﬁwg%&smm>_?_ﬂ_¢
98.7% & 42.0%) ° SR EES A
TEBEREBRLEHSEBA
W ER FEU TR IE Y 45 - BIREME
REBERUHEEBAZREERE
WHIBEEHBRTEE X EERE @
BEATXHEBEZEREYZ S ERZK
T2 BB AR - BEIEEBRE AT
TAECER - MEREARR - EISARES
BENARBEESA B FEEM
FF 0 THTHE S REMERK
TEHY AT U B -

EHEEHRB—ESENEENM
EREPHETENEEFNE - LS
HEERE P R A MR R G0 8
MEBRMZFEESD - WEBRFRE
TEREEFERIURERFEEFTE
RICEIRIR BN ER - BEER
RERBME  BEZEKFIER
?éﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ?rZ?éSOiW@J
cHHEBRERNERME -
é—(mﬁf\QOiW FER - AEBEBRET
WERFEREESERR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal
to lifetime ECL, which is calculated using probability
of default model. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience indicates significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases. The
customer bases consist of the following groups:

Group 1: Customers from the operating segments of:
Construction and ancillary services

Group 2: Customers from the operating segments of:
Consumer goods business

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade

receivables:

At 31 December 2024

20. &R T A (I8)
(b)

MR EE B Rk R E(E)
12 0 B2 5, i {5 A 13 (#08)

EPAMELEZENIE.
HIEE (&)
AEBUSEREHBEHEEBED
THEABEIRUKBERANEE
EEEE - ZBEHEREOBER
WEHE - HRAKERENEEE
BEBRXAIRAEFENERER
FEBREEZE  AAKEETR
B R 2 — 0 BN E R
MR EEEE BEFEERENTE
Al

F148 - KRB TFI
ERNMEERE

BESBOES -

%Q%H : mg?ﬁu%@ﬁ%%
FOHBEERER

&
0%

TRESEBAEEE S EKKE
MEERRREREEFENE
¥

R-EB-_mFE+=-A=+—H

Oto 31to 61to Over

30 days 60 days 90 days 90 days Total
0E30X 31E60X 61E90X XML it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Group 1 customers FUERP
Expected credit loss rate (%)~ TEEREEEEE (%) 229%  N/ARER  NAFER 70.10% 7.81%
Gross carrying amount ERaE 28,217 - - 2,502 30,719
Lifetime ECL FHESEEER (645) = - (1,754) (2,399)
27,572 - - 748 28,320

Group 2 customers FUARF
Expected credit loss rate (%) TEEIE EEIER %) 0.82% 1.20% 1.20% 37.45% 14.47%
Gross carrying amount FmaE 35,971 9,312 9,830 32,400 87,513
Lifetime ECL rHEREEES (294) (112) (118) (12,135) (12,659)
35,677 9,200 9,712 20,265 74,854
63,249 9,200 9,712 21,013 103,174

Annual Report 2024 3§

157



158

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\ 7”%% i& i‘% Fﬁ uf

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

20. &R T A (R)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREREEHRRBEK(E)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment 15 6 BB Bk (B AT 4 (4)
(Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets arising from EEAHELNE ZERAERS
contracts with customers (Continued) HIEE (&)
At 31 December 2023 RZEBZ=F+=ZHA=+—H
0to 31to 61to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 90 days Total
0E30K 3160 61290k N it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TATL TATL TATL Fhr ThEL
Group 1 customers FARP
Expected credit loss rate (%)~ TEEIEEIBEX%) 218%  NATNER 095%  NATMER 2.13%
Gross carrying amount FREE 19,997 - 845 - 20,842
Lifetime ECL PHRHEERR (435) < ® = (443)
19,562 - 837 - 20,399
Group 2 customers FUERE
Expected credit loss rate (%)~ TEEREE BB (%) 1.18% NATEH NATEHR NATER 1.18%
Gross carrying amount FEAE 91,918 - - - 91,918
Lifetime ECL rHEAE SRR (1,087) - - - (1,087)
90,831 - - - 90,831
110,393 - 837 - 111,230

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
estimated default rates of debtors within the same
industry over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information such
as real GDP growth, inflation rate, interest rate and
logit that is available without undue cost or effort.
The contract assets have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same
type of contracts. The Group therefore concluded that
the loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for contract assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Deposits and other receivables

The credit quality of the deposits and other
receivables have been assessed with reference to
historical information about the counterparties default
rate and financial position of the counterparties. The
Group recognised the allowance for expected credit
losses by assessing the credit risk characteristics of
other receivables, discount rate and the likelihood of
recovery and considering the prevailing economic
conditions.

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

R TR (&)
(b) MIEBREEBHERBRE)

15 5 . B e Gk (L (68D

e REMERHE

e hEMRIGANEEERD
SERBRGHFENERRIHYH
FHBAHRABEERETTAE
AR BB S E UGN E

B R AR R R UL E IR R
AREMERD & B8 B AR - B
m‘ﬁﬁﬂfﬁiﬁaﬁéﬁ

AEBNABEERBIFRFEE
AT R -

Trade receivables Other financial

Internal credit and contracts assets at
rating Description assets amortised cost
BHEEREAR R ArIEZ
MBS HTR fiii i aEE Hth&pEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL —not ~ 12-month ECL
[ and does not have any past-due amounts  credit-impaired ~ 12{@ A FEHiZE
RSEFENRRIK - B EE(TEE] THEEEE (2]
x| EE-WIHEEE
IE
Doubtful The amount is past due for more than 30 Lifetime ECL —not  Lifetime ECL — not
PN days or there have been significant in credit-impaired credit-impaired
credit risk since initial recognition through 2 HiFEERZ & > HIEHEE
information developed internally or EBE-WIHEEE ER-TIEEE
external resources RE BB
TR B AR BB0K Sl B N FB TS BV 15 &
FHNBEIR - EERE B BRHERIAR
BEIEN
Loss The amount is past due for more than 90 Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
&8 days or there is evidence indicating the credit-impaired credit-impaired
asset is credit-impaired 2HITEHEE 2HIEHEE
FIEE AIRROOAS B BB RNEERE BiE—EERE BiE—EERE
BRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is Amount is
g debtor is in severe financial difficulty and written off written off

the Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery
BRIBEREBARNEENIBINE

REBEERR I S S FRIA R AT AE

DEMEAREE CREMEERESHE
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HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which
are subject to ECL assessment:

As at 31 December 2024

29. £#MT R (&)
(b) MHEBREEEBHRERBEGE)

15 5 0 B e Gk (L (68D
TRFAVASEEHEERENE
ENEERR  HARXXEHAEE
BB -

R-T_HF+-A=+—H

Gross carrying
Internal credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
ABE TR 122 MFHEEER EE&E
HK$'000
THT
Financial assets at
amortised costs
RBSRFHE
ZEMEE
Trade receivables Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 83,329
(note 18) BER(Hite) 2 HEHEEER(THFEERE)
BHRKFIA
(H1i£18) Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 34,903
R P HEHEEBR(YHFEERE)
Deposits and other Low risk (note (b)) 12-month ECL 909
receivables RRB(H72b) 12EAEHEERSE
(note 20)
Re kM Loss (note (c)) Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 7,869
A BR(WH) rHEHEERR(EERE)
(Hrz#20)
8,778
Cash and bank balances  Low risk 12-month ECL 62,153
(note 21) il 12HAESHEERE
Re RRTHH
(Hiz#21)
Other item
HtigR
Contract assets Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 22,250
(note 19) BER(Hie) 2 HEHEEBR(THFEERE)
BRBEWIEH19)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WNE+_A=+—HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2023

20. &R T A (I8)

MEERREEHRRBR ()

15 5 . B e Gk (L (68D

RZZE-_=F+=-A=+—H

Gross carrying
Internal credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
ABERTR 12BA 2 MFHERER fRE#E
HK$'000
THET
Financial assets at
amortised costs
RERNEHE
ZEMEE
Trade receivables Low risk (note (@)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 111,915
(note 18) KRR (M E) 2HEBEEHE(IEEERE)
B HRYHIE
(Hiit18) Doulbtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 845
=& PEEBEEHEIEEERE)
Deposits and other Low risk (note (b)) 12-month ECL 422
receivables ‘R (AaE b)) 128 A BHEEEE
(note 20)
meREM Loss (note (c)) Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 7,869
JENRIE EB(HEc) 2HEHEEBE(EERNE)
(Bizt20)
8,291
Cash and bank balances  Low risk 12-month ECL 40,434
(note 21) KRR 12[BABHEERE
Re kR
(Biit21)
Other item
Ht1HE
Contract assets Low risk (note (a)) Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 45,895
(note 19) BER(HieE) 2HEBEEBE(IEEERE)
BREEH19)
Notes: B

(@)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses the latest available financial and other information
about the borrowers/debtors to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. As at 31
December 2024 and 2023, these balances are either not past
due or do not have fixed repayment.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a debtor of other
receivable of amount HK$7,869,000 had been transferred to
lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) as the debtor has failed to repay
the principal and interest.

HESERFIARSHNEENS @ &
SEERTEFBMERLAFESR ML
Rt EEHERERBIRZERER -

HRARMEERREREME - AEEME
RERERA BB 58
BRAMENTGEEERRES AT

IRFERAB ARG - RZTZMNEF R
:%:E$+:HE+—E et

BE_ZT-_—F+Z-A=+—H1t
¢F§Zf CHREBAREEERS KF

- (BT A E Ath FE U FRTE 7,869,000/
naﬁﬁiﬁﬁfﬁﬁw%@ﬁa(ﬁ R
&) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The closing loss allowances for loan receivables,
trade receivables, contract assets, and deposit and
other receivables as at 31 December 2024 and 2023
reconcile to the opening loss allowances as follows:

R TR ()

(b) MIEBREEBHERBRE)
15 5 0 B e Gk (L (68D
R-B_MER_F_=F+_H

=+t—8" Eﬁﬂﬁl%m B 5 UK
B AHNBEEARES MEMER
SRR B R B 1R B B R ) S 1R %
BHYEIERIDT -

Other Other
financial financial
assets at assets at
Loan amortised  amortised
receivables cost cost
(credit- Trade Contract (ot credit- (credit-
impaired)  receivables assets  impaired)  impaired) Total
it e
HECEY  BHBEE
eHMEE HEZHAM
BhER  HAEK (B%  SMEE
(fREwE) BE  AMEE GREEE) (REEE) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL Thr Thr ThL Thn Thr
(Note 18) (Note 19) (Note 20) (Note 20)
(e)  (#e) o) (W)
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=F-F-H
10,054 635 16 30 7,869 18,604
Written off s (10,064) - - - - (10,064)
Increase inloss allowance ERNERRT FERE
recognised in profit or loss during  E1F
the year, net - 895 992 - - 1,887
At 31 December 2023 RZE-ZFT-A=1-H
- 1,530 1,008 30 7,869 10,437
Increase inloss alowance ERnERRI BELE
recognised n proftt or loss Emss
during the year, net - 13,049 (500) 7 - 13,056
Exchange alignment ERA% - 1) - - - 1)
At 31 December 2024 W-E-ME+ZA=1T-H - 15,058 508 37 7869 23472

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 1 year
past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as net impairment losses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the same line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
nﬂ‘EJ/JTf%€ﬂ§§§%MTDEE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk management includes
maintaining flexibility by keeping sufficient cash and
cash equivalents generated from operations. The
Company regularly reviews its major funding positions
to ensure that it has adequate financial resources in
meeting its financial obligations.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivatives financial
liabilities which are included in the maturity analysis
provided internally to the key management personnel
for the purpose of managing liquidity risk. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table reflects the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows.

(b)

20. &R T A (I8)

MR EE B Rk R E(E)

ARE R & W R
AEBEERRDE ARE SRS
EEM - HOARGREEELN
ARASRASEEY - ARBE
HEZETEESMN  BREA
R NBEITHEE

TREAVAEEFTESHAED
BRTEHIHA  WEMARERE
MEEREEMEANDREETEE
BEREABMIHSNH o BLIETE
TRMAENS @ ZXRARMNAEE
E A ERERBEN T A EW
TRMEBEIRERRERE - ZK
E%ﬁ*”%x&zﬁiiﬁimui °

Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within 1to5 undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year years cash flows  amounts
RUH
miEgFEy ReRE
BRFIE —£R —EIif #E FERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FT#T T#T TET TET
As at 31 December 2024 R-E_ME+_A
=1+—H
Non-derivative financial FTEEMAR
liabilities
Trade payables BHRMNFE - 2,488 - 2,488 2,488
Accrued expenses and other ~ [EEHFAS R E
payables JEI5RIE - 28,995 - 28,995 28,995
Other borrowings Hin g 16.85 87,659 - 87,659 75,016
Lease liabiliies HEaRE 7.15 360 300 660 621
119,502 300 119,802 107,120
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164 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l\\/T\ ﬁﬂvv% $l§ % MT DE

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 20. M T R(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREREEHRRBEK(E)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REE SRS (1])
Weighted
average
effective Total Total
interest Within 1to5  undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year years cash flows amounts
RER
INEFS Bene
ERHE —FR —EREF gy EREAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% AT TR THT THT
As at 31 December 2023 RZ-ZZ=%f+_"H
=t+—-H
Non-derivative financial FTELMAR
liabilities
Trade payables BHEMNFE - 26,648 - 26,648 26,648
Accrued expenses and other  JEFTFIS R E
payables NG - 11,290 - 11,290 11,290
Other borrowings HifE 8.80 80,136 = 80,136 73,651
Lease liabilities HEaR 4.61 902 - 902 885
118,976 - 118,976 112,474
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) EMIRZAFHE
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERANGEUBREAR S
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the MEENCHEBBECERAEHEAER
consolidated financial statements approximate their FEEE
fair values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HBE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=1+—ALEFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

MG HRR M T

30. P 4 EIREA

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the end of the REMEAREZMBAB ZFFBEWT ¢
reporting period are as follows:
Proportion of ownership interest
Class of Issued and and voting rights held by the Company
share/ fully paid FATRBHRARERRRAMZLILE Principal
Place of registered share capital/ Directly Directly  Indirectly Indirecty  activities and
Name of Subsidiary incorporation  capital held registered capital HE B Mg f#%  place of operation
FrisBn BRITRME 2024 2023 2024 2023
MELAREE EMSINE  FhEmEE B/ EfEE —BCmE —T--F ZBECWE —T--F  FEEBREENG
% % % %
LCL Interior Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 200,000 shares - - 100 100 Provision of design,
& Limi of HK$1 each fitting-out and decoration
200,000 services, Hong Kong
BRABTRG RERE - RERES
ks - &R
Royal China Decoration Hong Kong Ordinary 10,000 shares - - 100 100 Provision of design,
Engineering Limited BE LiER of HK$1 each fitting-out and decoration
EhEHIRERAR 10,0008% services, Hong Kong
BRABTRG RERE - RERES
ks - &R
Hong Kong Zhong Niang ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 6,000,000 share - - 100 100 Production and sales of food
Group Winery Company 78 LiER of HK$1 each and beverage product,
Limited 6,000,000/% Hong Kong
ERTBEEEEERAT BRABTRG EEREERRR
HRER BE
TREWEZERAT PRC Registered ~/RMB200,000,000 - - 100* 100 Production and sales of food
(Jiangxi Luxin Jiuye Co. Fai -/ \R¥% and beverage product,
Ltd.) 200,000,0007TC PRC
EEREERDR
HHER  FE
IETEEEERAR PRC Registered ~/RMB50,000,000 - - 700 70*  Production and sales of food
(Jiangxi Zhongniang H Fai -/ AR% and beverage product,
Jiuye Co. Ltd.)* 50,000,0007T PRC
EERHERM
HHER  FE
SREBTIRERATF Macau Ordinary MOP25,000 - - 100% 100%  Provision of design, fitting out
B LRk 25,0002 7T and decoration service,
Macau
REGRET - REREHR
%+ R
TR(ERIREER PRC Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 56% 56%  Production and sales of food
HIR/AE] (China Brewing + Fai AR#10,000,0007C and beverage product,
(Fujian) Investment Group PRC
Co., Ltd) EEREERRR
SMER  FE
# The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. # ZEERETERLAINEBEDE -
2 The entity is partially foreign owned enterprises established in the A ZEERETERAHDINERE -
PRC.

The English name is for identification purpose only.

RXLRERIRN A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z_WME+_A=+—HIEFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. MIELATER ()

(Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year. The above table lists the subsidiaries of
the Group which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

The table below shows details of a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group which has material non-controlling

FR HENBARETEMNELE
75 o J:%%ﬁlJHj%$w7,%$%%ﬁ“ZKEI
XEREENAEENBAR - EFR
A RHEEMHBARNFESEHR
R -

TREIABERFERE RN AN E
FEEMBARFE

interest:

Place of
establishment/ Proportion of
registration and ownership interests

Profit allocated Accumulated

principal place held by the non- to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary of business controlling interests interests interests
I EfMitE FRRESREEZ SEEFERK
MEATRE REEERME RAEERLLH k=) d ] REFFERRER
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
“EoME —To-F ZBINE —To-F ZBINE —TO=F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
% % THT FAET FET FAET
Jiangxi Zhongniang PRC 30 30 2,131 4,714 10,846 9,050
Jiuye Co. Ltd.
(“Jiangxi Zhongniang”)
IRPBEXARAR P
(DIAE$EE])
Individually immaterial (116) - (114) -

subsidiary with non-
controlling interest

BEA SRR R a0 (51 3E
E-WN VNG

2,015 4,714 10,732 9,050

BAESAIERER 2T EBERA
BEREINT - L TBURF B ER (IR
BAKETESBRAR)KKREER
LIRS

Summarised financial information in respect of Jiangxi
Zhongniang that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below,
prepared in accordance with the significant accounting
policies of the Group, represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. MEBAFFIE(E)
(Continued)
Jiangxi Zhongniang LT RER
Financial information of statement of profit or loss BReEMEf2EalkaxiBEH
and other comprehensive income
2024 2023
—E-mE TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T FAT
Revenue e 122,369 177,505
Expenses and taxation FIsZ R B8 (115,266) (161,791)
Profit for the year F Na 7,103 15,714
Profit for the year attributable to: FRRAEGHEE
Equity holders of the Company AARERFE A 4,972 11,000
Non-controlling interests of the Group REEFEEAR R 2,131 4,714
7,103 15,714
Other comprehensive loss attributable to ~ ANA &% B AFE(G E A
owners of the Company FHEEE (782) (290)
Other comprehensive loss attributable to  FEFER% #E 2 FE (R E A
non-controlling interests 2HEEE (335) (124)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREMEAEERE (1,117) (414)
Total comprehensive income attributable N2 BB A B2
to owners of the Company Was 4858 4,190 10,710
Total comprehensive income attributable  FEFEIEZS (R 2T
to non-controlling interests Wi 4a%E 1,796 4,590
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZE MRS 4E5E 5,986 15,300
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. MEBAFFIE(E)
(Continued)
Jiangxi Zhongniang (Continued) L BRER(4)
Financial information of statement of financial position MHERREBHEEE
2024 2023
—ZEME TEC=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHBT
Non-current assets EMBNEE 23,133 23,859
Current assets MENVEE 210,393 147,234
Current liabilities nEBE (197,373) (140,926)
Net assets BEFE 36,153 30,167
Equity attributable to: RS FEIRNEE ¢
Equity holders of the Company RAEIERFEE A 25,307 21,117
Non-controlling interests of the Group REE IR E RS 10,846 9,050
Total equity b 36,153 30,167
Financial information of statement of cash flows RaRERPVEEH
2024 2023
—EmE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T FiBT
Net cash inflow from operating activites A& & EE) 2 IR &R A F5E 872 4,184
Net cash outflow from investing activities & /&) 2 R & mEFE (3,146) -
Net cash inflow from financing activites ~ Bi&E EE) 2 IR E R AFEE 27,216 -
Net cash inflow BE RN FEE 24,292 4,184
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
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31. XAFZHBRARR FEREH

(a) Statement of financial position of the (@) FAFZHBRAE
Company
2024 2023
—EmE —E=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE THET T
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Interests in subsidiaries RHBA ﬁ2$§¥ =* =
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEYWTE A BIEIE 355,315 336,763
355,315 336,763
Current assets RBEE
Deposit, prepayments and e ENRER
other receivables H Y GRIE 56 56
Cash and bank balances We RIRTT4s 13 9
69 65
Current liabilities nBAR
Accrued expenses FEETFISZ 31,535 12,477
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERM B A R FUE 102,942 102,941
Other borrowings HMER 67,500 67,500
201,977 182,918
Net current liabilities mERRRE (201,908) (182,853)
Total assets less current BEERRDAR
liabilities 153,407 153,910
Net assets HERHE 153,407 153,910
Equity e
Share capital [N 26 31,104 25,920
Reserves i 31(b) 122,303 127,990
Total equity attributable to FOTRE AR,
owners of the Company HiER 153,407 153,910
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RZE-_RAF=-—A=T—HEZES
directors on 31 March 2025 and signed on its behalf SHERKETIZEITHAUTESEK
by: =EE:
LU Zhaowei XIAO Yi
ERE &
Director Director
EF EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 31. EAFZMB R AERR EiFEH)

RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (#8)
(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company (b) EAFZGHIMEH
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B i{E L] ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
As at 1 January 2023 RN—E-_=F—H—H 232,364 (184,800) 47,564
Proceeds from rights issue AR TSR 103,680 - 103,680
Share issue costs H%ﬁ?‘ﬁﬁk$ (2,000 = (2,000)
Loss and total comprehensive & A &8 & 2 H &8
loss for the year Rk - (21,254) (21,254)
As at 31 December 2023and W-ZE-=%+—_#
1 January 2024 =t+—HE
—E-F—H—H 334,044 (206,054) 127,990
Proceeds from placing Fl & FT15 /I8 22,032 = 22,032
Share issue costs ek ?é‘ﬂﬁ%$ (381) = (381)
Loss and total comprehensive SFREE K2 HEEE
loss for the year k) - (27,338) (27,338)
As at 31 December 2024 R-E_mFE+—A
=+—H 355,695 (233,392) 122,303
Note: Kt
The balance represents an amount of less than HK$1,000. * RS EEDHN,00078 T ©
32. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 32. EBHBERH
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group REE-ZZT-_NF+-_A=+—HIEF
entered into new lease agreements for the use of leased B AEEXREAHEEMET L AN
properties for two years. On the lease commencement, FrHHERH N HEERKE K&
the Group recognised approximately HK$674,000 of right- B R AEEEL6740008 T NAE
of-use assets and approximately HK$674,000 of lease B {&E%I674,0008 T °
liabilities.
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33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33.

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had entered into the following material transactions
with related parties.

(a) Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the directors and certain of
the highest paid employees, as disclosed in Notes 11
and 12 are as follows:

EXEMBAEXS

BEeUMBHRESEREZR 5 MER
S REBBEEH SR LA TEARS

(@) EEEBARFHH
FTEERAEME  BENTES
kETERHES ZFE (M T
1 RA2FTHER) &Y T -

2024 2023
—EmEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fees we 360 360
Salaries and other benefits e RHAMET] 4,482 3,500
Performance related bonuses FRIRMBBIEA - 3,120
Pension scheme contributions iR K& &HEIE R 74 55
4,916 7,035
34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 34. METEHELENEBYHIE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest Lease Other
payable liabilities  borrowings Total
EaFR HEAR Rt g ot
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHIT FAL FAEL FHL
As at 1 January 2023 RZZEZ=%—H—H 3,738 2,255 41,736 47,729
Accrued interest ERTHE 6,329 68 - 6,397
Financing cash (outflow)/infow EVEIRS GRHE),/FHA @,772) (1,438) 31,915 25,705
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-_=F+_-H
=+—H 5,295 885 73,651 79,831
Addition of lease liabilities HEBELM - 355 - 355
Accrued interest JEETH 2 15,492 21 - 15,513
Financing cash inflow MEREMA - (640) 1,365 725
As at 31 December 2024 B-E_mE+=-A
=+-—8H 20,787 621 75,016 96,424
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LY pY

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=+-HLFE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-mE —E-=F ZE-CF —E--F e S 23
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FEr THT T FET
(Re-presented)
Results 4+ (fa=51)
Revenue W 188,737 293,151 190,652 247,170 113,182
(Loss)/profit before BRET{SHiA
income tax (B18)/ & H
— from continuing - REHE
operations [ (28,340) 6,690 3,897 8,950 (8,332
— from discontinued - REBLLE
operation =S - (2,121) (2,198) = (1,841)
Income tax (expense)/credit  FIEH: (F) /B R (2,297) (5,490) (3,080) (2,079) 52
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ ER(EiE) BF (30,637) (921) (1,381) 6,871 (10,121)
Attributable to: FE{k iR -
Owners of the Company ARAHEEA (32,652) (5,635) 4,172) 4,987 (10,107)
Non-controlling interests TR 2,015 4,714 2,791 1,884 (14)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ EX () /iBF (30,637) (921) (1,381) 6,871 (10,121)
As at 31 December
®+=RA=1+-H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-ME —E-=F —g-- T —E-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEr FET FET FET
Assets BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE 23,751 24,995 30,155 35,086 104,374
Current assets TEEE 445,081 455,907 310,048 282,843 159,176
Total assets BELE 468,832 480,902 340,203 317,929 263,550
Liabilities =1
Non-current liabilities FREas 292 - 885 977 532
Current liabilities RBEE 116,936 117,431 90,902 72,990 40,450
Total liabilties BIERE 117,228 117,431 91,787 73,967 40,982
Net assets EESE 351,604 363,471 248,416 243,962 222,568
Capital and reserves BERGE
Share capital P A 31,104 25,920 8,640 7,200 6,000
Reserves [t 309,768 328,501 235,316 234,865 216,582
Equity attributable to AREHEEAEE
owners of the Company i 340,872 354,421 243,956 242,065 222,582
Non-controlling interests R 10,732 9,050 4,460 1,897 (14)
Total equity HEa 351,604 363,471 248,416 243,962 222,568
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